
























 
 

 

Exhibit A 
 

That part of Lot 1, Block 1, Rejoice in the Lord Acres, Wright County, Minnesota, described as follows: 
 
Beginning at the most northerly corner of said Lot 1; thence South 34 degrees 58 minutes 18 seconds East 
along the northeasterly line of said Lot 1, a distance of 221.00 feet; thence South 50 degrees 01 minutes 42 
seconds West, a distance of 200.00 feet; thence North 34 degrees 58 minutes 18 seconds West, a distance of 
221.00 feet to the northwesterly line of said Lot 1; thence North 50 degrees 01 minutes 42 seconds East along 
said northwesterly line, a distance of 200.00 feet to the point of beginning.  
 
Abstract Property 







CIVIL & SURVEY PLANS PREPARED  BY:

DESCRIPTIONDATENO.
REV

JANUARY 2024
CITY OF CLEARWATER, WRIGHT COUNTY, MN

B&B BUILT, INC

1135 COUNTY ROAD 75
CLEARWATER-CLEAR LAKE FOOD SHELF

Bogart, Pederson
& Associates, Inc.

LAND SURVEYING
CIVIL ENGINEERING

ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES

Traditional Values Ã Creative Solutions

VICINITY MAPWRIGHT COUNTY, MINNESOTA

PROJECT LOCATION

7:
34

 A
M

N
:\P

ro
je

ct
s 

C
ur

re
nt

\2
3-

04
57

.0
0 

B&
B 

Bu
ilt

 C
le

ar
w

at
er

 F
oo

ds
he

lf\
C

iv
il\

C
AD

 F
ile

s\
C

ov
er

 S
W

PP
P 

D
et

ai
ls

.d
w

g
1/

31
/2

02
4

PRIVATE UTILITIES SHOWN ARE QUALITY LEVEL D.
QUALITY LEVEL D PROVIDES THE MOST BASIC LEVEL OF INFORMATION. IT INVOLVES
COLLECTING DATA FROM EXISTING UTILITY RECORDS. RECORDS MAY INCLUDE AS-BUILT
DRAWINGS, DISTRIBUTION AND SERVICES MAPS, EXISTING GEOGRAPHIC INFORMATION
SYSTEM DATABASES, CONSTRUCTION PLANS, ETC.

I-94

NO SCALE

N

COUNTY ROAD 75 NW

MANOR DR

PORTER ST

Civil Plans
Sheet Number Sheet Title

Cover
V1 Existing Conditions
C1 Demolition Plan
C2 Site Plan
C3 Grading Plan
C4 Utility Plan
C5 SWPPP Narrative
C6 Erosion Control Plan
C7 Details
C8 Details



EX
IS

TI
N

G

PLAN REFERENCE
1. CLEARWATER-CLEAR LAKEFOOD SHELF, WRIGHT

COUNTY, MN PREPARED BY BOGART, PEDERSON &
ASSOCIATES, INC. DATED 01/09/2024

LEGEND:

EX
IS

TI
N

G 
CO

N
DI

TI
O

N
S

V17:
34

 A
M

N
:\P

ro
je

ct
s 

C
ur

re
nt

\2
3-

04
57

.0
0 

B&
B 

Bu
ilt

 C
le

ar
w

at
er

 F
oo

ds
he

lf\
C

iv
il\

C
AD

 F
ile

s\
Ex

is
tin

g.
dw

g
1/

31
/2

02
4

N

SCALE:

0' 20' 40'

1"=20'

D
ES

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

D
AT

E
N

O
.

R
EV

FI
LE

 N
O

.: 

D
W

G
 F

IL
E:

 

C
H

EC
KE

D
 B

Y:
 

D
R

AW
N

 B
Y:

 

D
ES

IG
N

 B
Y:

 

D
AT

E:
 

SHEET NO.

LA
N

D
 S

U
R

VE
YI

N
G

C
IV

IL
 E

N
G

IN
EE

R
IN

G
EN

VI
R

O
N

M
EN

TA
L 

SE
R

VI
C

ES
13

07
6 

FI
R

ST
 S

TR
EE

T,
 B

EC
KE

R
, M

N
 5

53
08

-9
32

2
TE

L:
 7

63
-2

62
-8

82
2 

  F
AX

: 7
63

-2
62

-8
84

4

B
O

G
A

R
T,

 P
ED

ER
SO

N
&

 A
SS

O
C

IA
TE

S,
 IN

C
.

CL
EA

RW
AT

ER
-C

LE
AR

LA
KE

FO
O

D 
SH

EL
F

Ci
ty

 o
f  

Cl
ea

rw
at

er
, W

rig
ht

 C
ou

nt
y,

 M
N

11
/1

6/
20

23

23
-0

45
7.

00

C
JD

D
M

L

D
M

L

NO
T F

OR
 C

ON
ST

RU
CT

IO
N

Denotes tree, coniferous

Denotes set iron monument

Denotes light pole
Denotes hydrant

Denotes cable television box

Denotes guy wire
Denotes power pole

Denotes existing adjoiners
Denotes tree line

OHE Denotes overhead electric

Denotes found metal disk

Denotes bituminous surface

Denotes found iron monument

Denotes telephone pedestal

Denotes sanitary manhole
Denotes septic cleanout

Denotes tee fence post

Denotes downed fence lineX

AutoCAD SHX Text
WOODED

AutoCAD SHX Text
WOODED

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
TV

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
CO

AutoCAD SHX Text
Survey Notes: 1. This survey was performed without the benefit of a title report. No search This survey was performed without the benefit of a title report. No search for restrictions or easements was made by the surveyor. 2. The plat of REJOICE IN THE LORD ACRES was recorded on July 2nd, 2003 as The plat of REJOICE IN THE LORD ACRES was recorded on July 2nd, 2003 as Doc. No. 859164. 3. The purpose of this survey was to create Parcel A. Not all site features are The purpose of this survey was to create Parcel A. Not all site features are shown hereon.

AutoCAD SHX Text
Basis of Bearing: For the purpose of this survey, the bearings are based on the plat of REJOICE IN THE LORD ACRES. 



OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OVERHEAD POWER LINES

CAUTION

REMOVE ±0.02 ACRES OF TREES

REMOVE ±0.07 ACRES OF TREES

PROTECT HYDRANT & GATE VALVE

PROTECT CULVERT STRUCTURE

PROTECT CULVERT STRUCTURE

SAWCUT 37 LF OF BITUMINOUS

REMOVE 66 SQ FT OF BITUMINOUS

PROTECT TREES

REMOVE TREE

D
EM

O
LI

TI
O

N

CALL 48 HOURS BEFORE DIGGING:

TWIN CITY AREA 651-454-0002
MINNESOTA TOLL FREE 1-800-252-1166

 GOPHER STATE ONE CALL 

DE
M

O
LI

TI
O

N
 P

LA
N

C17:
34

 A
M

N
:\P

ro
je

ct
s 

C
ur

re
nt

\2
3-

04
57

.0
0 

B&
B 

Bu
ilt

 C
le

ar
w

at
er

 F
oo

ds
he

lf\
C

iv
il\

C
AD

 F
ile

s\
D

em
o.

dw
g

1/
31

/2
02

4

DEMOLITION GENERAL NOTES:
1. IT IS THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE CONTRACTOR TO PERFORM OR COORDINATE ALL

UTILITY CONNECTIONS AND RELOCATIONS FROM EXISTING UTILITY LOCATIONS TO THE
PROPOSED BUILDING, AS WELL AS TO ALL ON-SITE AMENITIES. THESE CONNECTIONS
INCLUDE BUT ARE NOT LIMITED TO WATER, SANITARY SEWER, UNDERGROUND GAS,
ETC.

2. THE CONNECTIONS SHALL BE PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH STATE AND LOCAL
STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS FOR CONSTRUCTION. UTILITY CONNECTIONS
(UNDERGROUND GAS, WATERMAIN, AND STORM SEWER) MAY REQUIRE A PERMIT FROM
THE CITY.

3. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL VERIFY THE ELEVATIONS AT PROPOSED CONNECTIONS TO
EXISTING UTILITIES PRIOR TO ANY DEMOLITION.

4. CONTRACTOR SHALL COORDINATE WITH THE CITY OF CLEARWATER FOR ALL UTILITY
DISCONNECTIONS, SERVICE TERMINATIONS AND REMOVALS. CONTRACTOR SHALL
COORDINATE UTILITY DISCONNECTIONS AND RELOCATIONS WITH THE UTILITY
PROVIDERS PRIOR TO THE START OF CONSTRUCTION. ALL SERVICE
CONNECTIONS/DISCONNECTIONS SHALL BE PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH STATE
AND LOCAL STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS FOR CONSTRUCTION.  CONTRACTOR SHALL
OBTAIN ALL NECESSARY STATE AND LOCAL PERMITS NECESSARY FOR UTILITY
CONSTRUCTION AND WORK WITHIN ADJACENT RIGHT-OF-WAYS.

5. IF DEWATERING IS REQUIRED FOR THIS PROJECT, THE PUMP DISCHARGE SHALL BE
TREATED PRIOR TO BEING DISCHARGED OFF-SITE OR INTO A SURFACE WATER. THE
DISCHARGE SHALL BE VISUALLY CHECKED TO ENSURE THAT IT IS VISIBLY CLEAN
WATER.

6. CONTRACTOR SHALL PROTECT UTILITIES, STRUCTURES AND TREES (NOTED AND NOT
NOTED) TO REMAIN AND SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE TO REPAIR DAMAGES TO ANY
FEATURES TO REMAIN.

7. TREES 6" AND LARGER AND OTHER NOTABLE VEGETATION WERE IDENTIFIED AND
LOCATED DURING THE COURSE OF THE SURVEY.  CONTRACTOR SHALL FIELD VERIFY
THE EXISTING CONDITIONS OF THE PROJECT AREA AND REMOVE ALL TREES NOT
DESIGNATED TO BE SAVED AND PROTECTED.  ALL TREES, DEBRIS, ROOTS, BOULDERS
AND TOPSOIL SHALL BE REMOVED FROM THE SITE.

REMOVE PAVEMENT SECTION (AS INDICATED).

REMOVE EXISTING TREES (AS INDICATED)

LEGEND:

REMOVE FEATURE (AS INDICATED)

SALVAGE (AS INDICATED)

SAW-CUT

N

SCALE:

0' 20' 40'

1"=20'

D
ES

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

D
AT

E
N

O
.

R
EV

FI
LE

 N
O

.: 

D
W

G
 F

IL
E:

 

C
H

EC
KE

D
 B

Y:
 

D
R

AW
N

 B
Y:

 

D
ES

IG
N

 B
Y:

 

D
AT

E:
 

SHEET NO.

LA
N

D
 S

U
R

VE
YI

N
G

C
IV

IL
 E

N
G

IN
EE

R
IN

G
EN

VI
R

O
N

M
EN

TA
L 

SE
R

VI
C

ES
13

07
6 

FI
R

ST
 S

TR
EE

T,
 B

EC
KE

R
, M

N
 5

53
08

-9
32

2
TE

L:
 7

63
-2

62
-8

82
2 

  F
AX

: 7
63

-2
62

-8
84

4

B
O

G
A

R
T,

 P
ED

ER
SO

N
&

 A
SS

O
C

IA
TE

S,
 IN

C
.

CL
EA

RW
AT

ER
-C

LE
AR

LA
KE

FO
O

D 
SH

EL
F

Ci
ty

 o
f  

Cl
ea

rw
at

er
, W

rig
ht

 C
ou

nt
y,

 M
N

11
/1

6/
20

23

23
-0

45
7.

00

C
JD

D
M

L

D
M

L

NO
T F

OR
 C

ON
ST

RU
CT

IO
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
WOODED

AutoCAD SHX Text
WOODED

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
10



SBL

SBL

SBL

SBL

SBL

SBL

SBL

SBL

SBL

SBL

SBL

SBL

SBL

SBL SBL

SBL

SBL

SBL

SBL

SBL

SBL

SBL

SBL

SBL

SBL

SBL

SBL

SBL

20.0'

20.0'

35.0'

2

3

12

13

20.0' 9.0'

8.0'

20.0'

20.0'

12.0'

20.0'

20.0'

20.0'

12.0'

5.0'
9.0'

VV

VV

VV

70.0'

|

|

|

|

|

|

|

|

|

|

|

|

|

|

|

MECHANICAL

ROOM

PROPOSED BUILDING
6,080 SF

R=3'
L=4.4'

R
=3

3 '
L=

48
.9

'

71.0'

R=34'L=40.4'

R=3'
L=3.6'

15.4'

R=4'
L=6.3'

111.0'

R=4'
L=6.3'

2.6'

R=3'
L=4.8'

3.0'

3.0'

R=3'
L=4.6'

2.1'

R=3'
L=3.5'

R
=3

3'
L=

39
. 4

'

3.0'

R
=2

0'
L=

32
.2

'

55.1'

R=22'
L=11.5'

R=1
5'

L=
11

.7
'

55.1'

R=21'
L=32.2'

3.0'

R=3'
L=4.8'

2.6'

R=4'
L=6.3'

102.0'

R=4'
L=6.3'

13.2'

PROPOSED EXPANSION OF EXISTING INFILTRATION BASIN

PROPOSED INFILTRATION BASIN

TIE INTO EXISTING

5' WIDE SIDEWALK

B612 CURB & GUTTER

PROPOSED LANDSCAPE ROCK AREA

PROPOSED 5' WIDE SIDEWALK

BITUMINOUS PAVEMENT

3' CURB TAPER

3' CURB TAPER

3' CURB TAPER

3' CURB TAPER

R=3'
L=4.7'

14.0'

R=3'
L=4.7' 27.0'

R=3'
L=4.7'

17.0'

R=13'
L=19.6'

60.5'

R=13'
L=19.6'

71.0'

R=12'L=19.6'
R=5'
L=7.9'

3.0'

3.0'

R=5'
L=7.9'

3.0'

29.0'

R=3'
L=4.7'

1.5'

71.0'

R=12'
L=19.6'

1.5'

17.0'

R=3'
L=4.7'

38.0'

17.0'

3.0'

3.0'

5.0'

5.0'

3.0'
R=3'

L=4.6' 2.1'

R=3'
L=3.5'

R=34'

L=39.4'

3.0'

ADA PARKING
SIGNS W/ BOLLARDS

CALL 48 HOURS BEFORE DIGGING:

TWIN CITY AREA 651-454-0002
MINNESOTA TOLL FREE 1-800-252-1166

 GOPHER STATE ONE CALL 

SI
TE

 B
AS

E

SI
TE

 P
LA

N

C27:
34

 A
M

N
:\P

ro
je

ct
s 

C
ur

re
nt

\2
3-

04
57

.0
0 

B&
B 

Bu
ilt

 C
le

ar
w

at
er

 F
oo

ds
he

lf\
C

iv
il\

C
AD

 F
ile

s\
Si

te
.d

w
g

1/
31

/2
02

4

PROPOSED CONCRETE PAVEMENT

PROPOSED TURF ESTABLISHMENT

PROPOSED ASPHALT PAVEMENT

CONCRETE CURB AND GUTTER - B612

LEGEND:

SITE PLAN NOTES:
1. PAINTED PAVEMENT MARKING DIMENSIONS ARE SHOWN TO FACE OF

CURB. ALL OTHER DIMENSIONS ARE SHOWN TO BACK OF CURB.

2. ALL CONCRETE RAMPS, SIDEWALKS AND ACCESSIBLE HANDICAPPED
PARKING STALLS TO CONFORM TO CURRENT A.D.A. REQUIREMENTS.

3. CONTRACTOR SHALL FIELD VERIFY HORIZONTAL AND VERTICAL LOCATION
OF EXISTING UTILITIES PRIOR TO START OF CONSTRUCTION.

4. CONTRACTOR SHALL INSTALL EROSION CONTROL MEASURES PRIOR TO
THE START OF CONSTRUCTION.

5. CONSTRUCTION SHALL BE IN ACCORDANCE WITH APPLICABLE CITY,
COUNTY AND STATE REGULATIONS.

6. SITE SHALL BE CONSTRUCTED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE PLANS
APPROVED BY THE CITY.

7. LANDSCAPING AND TURF ESTABLISHMENT PER LANDSCAPE PLANS &
SPECIFICATIONS.

8. ALL DISTURBED AREAS OUTSIDE THE BUILDING PAD WHICH ARE NOT
DESIGNATED TO BE PAVED OR RECEIVE AGLIME, SHALL RECEIVE AT LEAST
6" OF TOPSOIL AND SHALL BE SEEDED OR SODDED. REFER TO THE
EROSION CONTROL PLAN FOR SOD AND SEED LOCATIONS. ALL OTHER
AREAS DISTURBED BY CONSTRUCTION NOT SPECIFICALLY IDENTIFIED TO
RECEIVE A CERTAIN SEED MIX SHALL BE MIXED WITH SEED MIX 25-131.

9. WHERE NEW SOD MEETS EXISTING SOD, EXISTING SOD EDGE SHALL BE
CUT TO ALLOW FOR A CONSISTENT, UNIFORM STRAIGHT EDGE. JAGGED
OR UNEVEN EDGES WILL NOT BE ACCEPTABLE. REMOVE TOPSOIL AT
JOINT BETWEEN EXISTING AND NEW AS REQUIRED TO ALLOW NEW SOD
SURFACE TO BE FLUSH WITH EXISTING.

SITE PLAN INFORMATION:
PARCEL AREA:
· 1.01 ACRES ±

EXISTING ZONING:
· PI - PUBLIC INSTITUTIONAL DISTRICT

PRINCIPAL STRUCTURE SETBACKS:
· FRONT: 70' (ARTERIAL OR COLLECTOR ROAD)
·· 35' (LOCAL STREET)

· SIDE: 20'
·· 50' (ABUTTING RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT)

· REAR: 35'
·· 50' (ABUTTING RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT)

PARKING SETBACKS:
· FRONT SETBACK FOR PARKING: 10'
· SIDE SETBACK FOR PARKING: 15'
· REAR SETBACK FOR PARKING: 15'

SITE DATA EXISTING    PROPOSED
PAVEMENT AREA 0 SF  16,989 SF
CONCRETE AREA 0 SF  2,821 SF
BUILDING AREA   0 SF  6,080 SF
LANDSCAPE AREA 0 SF  798 SF
WOODS AREA   4,401 SF  0 SF
PERVIOUS AREA 46,544 SF 23,896 SF
TOTAL AREA   50,584 SF 50,584, SF

PARKING REQUIREMENTS:
· MINIMUM PARKING STALL DIMENSIONS: 20' X 9' (90° PARKING)
PARKING STALLS:
· TOTAL STALLS PROVIDED: 30
· TOTAL ADA STALLS PROVIDED: 2 (2 VAN ACCESSIBLE)
· TOTAL ADA STALLS REQUIRED: 2 (2 VAN ACCESSIBLE REQUIRED)

PROPOSED SIGN

N

PROPOSED GRAVEL SURFACING

SCALE:

0' 20' 40'

1"=20'

D
ES

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

D
AT

E
N

O
.

R
EV

FI
LE

 N
O

.: 

D
W

G
 F

IL
E:

 

C
H

EC
KE

D
 B

Y:
 

D
R

AW
N

 B
Y:

 

D
ES

IG
N

 B
Y:

 

D
AT

E:
 

SHEET NO.

LA
N

D
 S

U
R

VE
YI

N
G

C
IV

IL
 E

N
G

IN
EE

R
IN

G
EN

VI
R

O
N

M
EN

TA
L 

SE
R

VI
C

ES
13

07
6 

FI
R

ST
 S

TR
EE

T,
 B

EC
KE

R
, M

N
 5

53
08

-9
32

2
TE

L:
 7

63
-2

62
-8

82
2 

  F
AX

: 7
63

-2
62

-8
84

4

B
O

G
A

R
T,

 P
ED

ER
SO

N
&

 A
SS

O
C

IA
TE

S,
 IN

C
.

CL
EA

RW
AT

ER
-C

LE
AR

LA
KE

FO
O

D 
SH

EL
F

Ci
ty

 o
f  

Cl
ea

rw
at

er
, W

rig
ht

 C
ou

nt
y,

 M
N

11
/1

6/
20

23

23
-0

45
7.

00

C
JD

D
M

L

D
M

L

NO
T F

OR
 C

ON
ST

RU
CT

IO
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
WOODED

AutoCAD SHX Text
WOODED

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
10



SBL

SBL

SBL

SBL

SBL

SBL

SBL

SBL

SBL

SBL

SBL

SBL

SBL

SBL SBL

SBL

SBL

SBL

SBL

SBL

SBL

SBL

SBL

SBL

SBL

SBL

SBL

SBL

VV

VV

VV

|

|

|

|

|

|

|

|

|

|

|

|

|

|

|

MECHANICAL

ROOM

PROPOSED BUILDING
6,080 SF

1001.86 EX

1002.38 EX

1003.07 EX

1003.12 EX

1000.80 EX

1001.77 EX

1001.74 EX

1002.55 EX

998.57 EX

1001.28 EX

2.0%

2.0%

2.0%

2.0%4.3%

6.5%

2.0%

2.7%

2.0%

0.8%

0.5%

2.0%

1.0%

1.0%

1.0%

1.0%

1.2%

2.0%

2.0%
2.0%1.0%

1.0%

2.0%

1000

1000

998

99
8

999

99
9

1001

1000

1000

998

998
999

999

1001

1000

1000

1001

10011001

10011001

10
01

1002

1002

1002

10
02

1002

1002

1002

10
02

10
02

1002

1002

1003

1002.40 FG

1002.25 FG

1002.40 FG

1002.50 FG

1002.00 FG

1002.50 FG

1002.50 FG

1002.44 SW

1002.50 FG

1002.50 FG

1002.44 SW

1002.30 SW

1001.72 SW

1001.71 SW

1002.10 SW

1002.16 SW 1002.21 SW

1002.44 SW

1002.44 SW

1002.28 SW

1002.28 SW

1002.07 SW

1002.23 SW

1002.73 TP

1002.77 TP

1001.17 TP

1001.13 TP

998.00 FG

996.00 FG

1002.44 SW

1002.50 FG

1002.50 FG

1002.44 SW

1002.44 SW

1002.48 SW

1002.50 FG

1002.50 FG

1002.50 FG

1002.50 FG

1002.50 FG

1002.50 TC
1002.50 FL

1002.50 SW
1002.50 FL

1002.05 TC
1002.05 FL

1001.93 TC
1001.93 FL

1001.22 TC
1001.22 FL

1001.24 TC
1001.24 FL

1001.27 TC
1001.27 FL

1001.11 TC
1001.11 FL

1002.38 SW

1002.38 SW

1002.10 SW

1001.80 TC
1001.30 FL

1001.72 TC
1001.22 FL

1001.76 TC
1001.26 FL

1001.70 TC
1001.20 FL

1001.29 TC
1000.79 FL

1001.27 TC
1000.77 FL

1002.26 TC
1001.76 FL

1002.27 TC
1001.77 FL

1002.50 TC
1002.00 FL

1001.96 TC
1001.46 FL

1001.87 TC
1001.37 FL

1001.85 TC
1001.35 FL 1001.79 TC

1001.29 FL

1001.24 TC
1000.74 FL

1001.19 TC
1000.69 FL

1001.53 TC
1001.03 FL

1001.46 TC
1000.96 FL

1001.42 TC
1000.92 FL

1001.17 TC
1000.67 FL

1002.01 TC
1001.51 FL

1001.92 TC
1001.42 FL

1001.98 TC
1001.48 FL

1001.98 TC
1001.48 FL

1002.11 TC
1001.61 FL

1002.38 TC
1001.88 FL

1002.34 TC
1001.84 FL

1002.27 TC
1001.77 FL

1002.44 TC
1001.94 FL

1001.25 TC
1000.75 FL

1001.23 TC
1000.73 FL

1001.27 TC
1000.77 FL

1001.32 TC
1000.82 FL

1001.34 TC
1000.84 FL

1001.38 TC
1000.88 FL

1001.87 TC
1001.37 FL

1002.02 TC
1001.52 FL

1001.33 TC
1000.83 FL

1001.13 TC
1000.63 FL

1002.18 TC
1001.68 FL

1000.50 TC

1000.50 TC

1002.46 SW
1001.96 FL

1002.43 SW
1001.93 FL

1002.36 TC

1002.38 TC
1002.31 SW
1002.31 FL

1002.33 SW
1002.33 FL

1002.34 SW
1001.84 FL

1002.29 SW
1001.79 FL

1002.19 SW
1001.69 FL

1002.34 SW
1001.84 FL

1001.88 SW
1001.38 FL

1001.90 SW
1001.40 FL

1001.87 SW
1001.37 FL

1001.84 SW
1001.34 FL

1002.21 SW
1002.21 FL

1002.17 SW
1002.17 FL

1002.08 SW
1002.08 FL

1002.13 SW
1001.63 FL

1002.44 SW
1002.44 FL

1002.34 SW
1002.34 FL

1002.30 TC
1001.80 FL

1002.45 TC
1001.95 FL

1002.45 TC
1001.95 FL

1001.62 SW
1001.62 FL

1001.61 SW
1001.61 FL

1002.20 SW
1001.70 FL

1002.00 SW
1001.50 FL

1002.06 SW
1001.56 FL

1002.01 SW
1001.51 FL

1002.45 SW

1002.35 SW

1002.25 TC
1001.75 FL

1001.32 TP

1001.41 TP

1001.42 TP

1001.52 TP

1.0%

2:1

6:
1

9:1

4:1

4:1

4:1

4:1

1000.80 EX

1000.86 EX

995.48 EX

999.49 EX

VV

VV

VV

W

W

W

W

W
W

W

W

W FFE=1002.5

41.0'

97.5'

59.3'

65.5'
80.6'

V

V

V

V

V

V

V

G
R

AD
IN

G

GR
AD

IN
G 

PL
AN

C37:
34

 A
M

N
:\P

ro
je

ct
s 

C
ur

re
nt

\2
3-

04
57

.0
0 

B&
B 

Bu
ilt

 C
le

ar
w

at
er

 F
oo

ds
he

lf\
C

iv
il\

C
AD

 F
ile

s\
G

ra
di

ng
.d

w
g

1/
31

/2
02

4

SF GRADING LIMITS AND PROPOSED
TEMPORARY SILT FENCE

TEMPORARY ROCK CONSTRUCTION ENTRANCE

PROPOSED RIP RAP

984

NEW TOP-BACK OF CURB ELEVATION

NEW SIDEWALK ELEVATION

PROPOSED CONTOUR

980.50 TC

NEW FLOW LINE OF CURB ELEVATION

PROPOSED SLOPE

980.50 FL

980.50 SW

NEW TOP OF GRAVEL ELEVATION

NEW TOP OF PAVEMENT ELEVATION980.50 TP

980.50 TG

EXISTING ELEVATION980.50 EX

EROSION CONTROL BLANKET (PER DETAIL)

NEW FINISHED GRADE ELEVATION980.50 FG

EMERGENCY OVERFLOWE.O.F.

TEMPORARY SEDIMENT FILTER- HIGH FLOW

LEGEND:

FIBER-LOG ROLLS

GRADING GENERAL NOTES:

1. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL NOTE ANY DISCREPANCIES BETWEEN EXISTING CONDITIONS
IN THE FIELD REPRESENTED WITHIN THE PLANS AS SHOWN AND ALERT THE ENGINEER
BEFORE BIDDING THE PROJECT AND BEGINNING CONSTRUCTION.

2. CONTRACTOR SHALL LOCATE AND VERIFY ALL UTILITIES WHICH MAY AFFECT THIS
WORK AND NOTIFY THE OWNER OF ANY CHANGES. CONTACT LOCAL UTILITY
COMPANIES FOR EXACT LOCATIONS PRIOR TO BIDDING THE PROJECT AND
COMMENCING WORK.

3. CONTRACTOR SHALL TAKE NECESSARY PRECAUTIONS TO PREVENT SILT AND DEBRIS
RUN-OFF DURING GRADING OPERATIONS (I.E. SILT FENCE, STRAW BALES, ETC.).

4. CONTRACTOR SHALL VERIFY CRITICAL ELEVATIONS TO ENSURE CONFORMANCE WITH
GRADING PLAN, PARTICULARLY WITH EXISTING STRUCTURES AND/OR PAVEMENTS TO
REMAIN. MEET EXISTING GRADES ALONG STREETS, PROPERTY LINES, AND DRIVEWAY
ENTRANCES. RESTORE ALL PAVEMENTS THAT REMAIN TO THEIR ORIGINAL IF NOT
BETTER CONDITION. NOTIFY OWNER OF ANY CONFLICTS PRIOR TO BIDDING THE
PROJECT.

5. TURF ESTABLISHMENT AREAS SHALL RECEIVE MINIMUM OF 4" DEPTH AS MEASURED IN
PLACE OF TOPSOIL. TOPSOIL WILL BE FURNISHED AND INSTALLED BY THE
CONTRACTOR. ALL GRADED SLOPES GREATER THAN OR EQUAL TO 5:1 SHALL BE
HYDROSEEDED, EROSION CONTROL BLANKETED, OR MULCHED TO HELP STABILIZE THE
SLOPES BY GENERAL CONTRACTOR.

6. PROPOSED SPOT ELEVATIONS ARE TO THE TOP OF CURB UNLESS NOTED OTHERWISE.
ELEVATION OF FLOW LINE IS 6" BELOW TOP OF CURB UNLESS OTHERWISE SHOWN.

7. CONTRACTOR SHALL BE SOLELY RESPONSIBLE FOR DETERMINING QUANTITIES OF CUT,
FILL AND WASTE MATERIALS TO BE HANDLED, AND FOR AMOUNT OF GRADING TO BE
DONE IN ORDER TO COMPLETELY PERFORM ALL WORK INDICATED ON THE DRAWINGS.
IMPORT SUITABLE MATERIAL AND EXPORT UNSUITABLE / EXCESS / WASTE MATERIAL AS
REQUIRED. ALL COSTS ASSOCIATED WITH IMPORTING AND EXPORTING MATERIALS
SHALL BE INCIDENTAL TO THE CONTRACT.

8. IT IS INTENDED THAT EARTHWORK (CUT VS. FILL) BALANCE ON SITE. THE CONTRACTOR
SHALL SUBMIT THE QUANTITY OF MATERIAL AND AMOUNT OF ANTICIPATED GRADE
ADJUSTMENT FOR REVIEW BY THE ENGINEER A MINIMUM OF FOUR WEEKDAYS PRIOR
TO MAKING ADJUSTMENTS. ALL GRADE ADJUSTMENTS MUST BE APPROVED BY THE
ENGINEER. NO ADDITIONAL COMPENSATION WILL BE ALLOWED FOR WORK ASSOCIATED
WITH GRADING ADJUSTMENTS, INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, EARTHWORK
OPERATIONS, STORM SEWER PIPING AND STRUCTURE ADJUSTMENTS, CONSTRUCTION
SURVEYING FOR ADJUSTING FEATURE LOCATIONS ACCORDINGLY, SILT FENCE, ETC.

9. FAILURE OF TURF DEVELOPMENT: IN THE EVENT THE CONTRACTOR FAILS TO PROVIDE
AN ACCEPTABLE TURF, THE CONTRACTOR SHALL RE-SEED OR RE-SOD ALL APPLICABLE
AREAS, AT NO ADDITIONAL COST TO THE OWNER, TO THE SATISFACTION OF THE
ENGINEER.

10. ANY MANHOLE, CATCH BASIN, STORM SEWER, SANITARY SEWER, DRAINTILE, OR OTHER
POTENTIAL SOURCE FOR CONTAMINATION SHALL BE INSTALLED AT LEAST 10 FEET
HORIZONTALLY FROM ANY WATERMAIN PER MINNESOTA PLUMBING CODE. THIS
ISOLATION DISTANCE SHALL BE MEASURED FROM THE OUTER EDGE OF THE PIPE TO
THE OUTER EDGE OF THE CONTAMINATION SOURCE (OUTER EDGE OF STRUCTURES OR
PIPING OR SIMILAR)

11. CONTRACTOR SHALL MAINTAIN DRAINAGE  FROM EXISTING BUILDING AT ALL TIMES.
PROVIDE TEMPORARY STORM SEWER (INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, CATCH BASINS,
MANHOLES, PIPING, ETC.) AS REQUIRED. EXISTING STORM SEWER SHALL NOT BE
REMOVED UNTIL TEMPORARY OR PERMANENT STORM SEWER IS INSTALLED AND
FUNCTIONAL. COORDINATE ALL REMOVALS WITH APPROPRIATE TRADES (SITE UTILITY
CONTRACTOR, MECHANICAL CONTRACTOR, ETC.) AS REQUIRED.

N

SCALE:

0' 20' 40'

1"=20'

D
ES

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

D
AT

E
N

O
.

R
EV

FI
LE

 N
O

.: 

D
W

G
 F

IL
E:

 

C
H

EC
KE

D
 B

Y:
 

D
R

AW
N

 B
Y:

 

D
ES

IG
N

 B
Y:

 

D
AT

E:
 

SHEET NO.

LA
N

D
 S

U
R

VE
YI

N
G

C
IV

IL
 E

N
G

IN
EE

R
IN

G
EN

VI
R

O
N

M
EN

TA
L 

SE
R

VI
C

ES
13

07
6 

FI
R

ST
 S

TR
EE

T,
 B

EC
KE

R
, M

N
 5

53
08

-9
32

2
TE

L:
 7

63
-2

62
-8

82
2 

  F
AX

: 7
63

-2
62

-8
84

4

B
O

G
A

R
T,

 P
ED

ER
SO

N
&

 A
SS

O
C

IA
TE

S,
 IN

C
.

CL
EA

RW
AT

ER
-C

LE
AR

LA
KE

FO
O

D 
SH

EL
F

Ci
ty

 o
f  

Cl
ea

rw
at

er
, W

rig
ht

 C
ou

nt
y,

 M
N

11
/1

6/
20

23

23
-0

45
7.

00

C
JD

D
M

L

D
M

L

NO
T F

OR
 C

ON
ST

RU
CT

IO
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
WOODED

AutoCAD SHX Text
WOODED

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
10



SBL

SBL

SBL

SBL

SBL

SBL

SBL

SBL

SBL

SBL

SBL

SBL

SBL

SBL SBL

SBL

SBL

SBL

SBL

SBL

SBL

SBL

SBL

SBL

SBL

SBL

SBL

SBL

VV

VV

VV

|

|

|

|

|

|

|

|

|

|

|

|

|

|

|

MECHANICAL

ROOM

PROPOSED BUILDING
6,080 SF

2.0%

2.0%

2.0%

2.0%4.3%

6.5%

2.0%

2.7%

2.0%

0.8%

0.5%

2.0%

1.0%

1.0%

1.0%

1.0%

1.2%

2.0%

2.0%
2.0%1.0%

1.0%

2.0%

1000

1000

998

99
8

999

99
9

1001

1000

1000

998

998
999

999

1001

1000

1000

1001

10011001

10011001

10
01

1002

1002

1002

10
02

1002

1002

1002

10
02

10
02

1002

1002

1003

1.0%

2:1

6:
1

9:1

4:1

4:1

4:1

4:1

EOF=1001.17

FES 101
INV.=998.00

FES 102
INV.=998.00

VV

VV

VV

65 LF 15"Ø RCP @
 0.00%

W

W

W

W

W
W

W

W

W FFE=1002.5

65 LF OF 2"

35 LF OF 2"

85 LF OF 2"

45° BEND

45° BEND

41.0'

97.5'

59.3'

65.5'

80.6'

V

V

V 61 LF OF 4"Ø SDR-26 @
 2.01%

14 LF OF 4"Ø SDR-26 @ 1.98%

V

V

V

V

CONNECT TO WATERMAIN
FIELD VERIFY MATERIAL & SIZE

WET TAP SADDLE CONNECTION

89 LF OF 4"Ø SDR-26 @
 2.00%

INV. = 996.50

45° BEND

45° BEND

EXISTING STRUCTURE
RIM = 1002.18
NE INV = 985.98
NW INV = 985.98
SW INV = 985.98
FIELD VERIFY INVERTS

PROPOSED 4" SDR-26 CONNECTION
INV. = 993.20 (FIELD VERIFY)

RUN 4" SDR-26 @ 2%

U
TI

LI
TY

U
TI

LI
TY

 P
LA

N

C47:
34

 A
M

N
:\P

ro
je

ct
s 

C
ur

re
nt

\2
3-

04
57

.0
0 

B&
B 

Bu
ilt

 C
le

ar
w

at
er

 F
oo

ds
he

lf\
C

iv
il\

C
AD

 F
ile

s\
G

ra
di

ng
.d

w
g

1/
31

/2
02

4

VV

|

V

PROPOSED STORM SEWER

PROPOSED WATER LINE

PROPOSED SANITARY SEWER

PROPOSED SANITARY MANHOLE

PROPOSED FLARED END SECITON

PROPOSED CATCH BASIN

PROPOSED FITTING

PROPOSED GATE VALVE & BOX

PROPOSED CLEANOUT

PROPOSED RIP RAP

LEGEND:

D

S

PROPOSED STORM MANHOLE

W

S

PROPOSED WATER SERVICE

PROPOSED SANITARY SERVICE

PROPOSED HYDRANT

N

UTILITY GENERAL NOTES:
1. CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR COORDINATING ALL UTILITY RELOCATIONS.

2. CONTRACTOR SHALL LOCATE AND VERIFY ALL UTILITIES WHICH MAY AFFECT THIS WORK
AND NOTIFY OWNER OF ANY CHANGES. CONTACT LOCAL UTILITY COMPANIES FOR EXACT
LOCATIONS PRIOR TO BIDDING THE PROJECT AND COMMENCING WORK.

3. CONTRACTOR SHALL VERIFY CRITICAL ELEVATIONS TO ENSURE CONFORMANCE WITH
GRADING PLAN AND EXISTING UTILITIES, PARTICULARLY WITH EXISTING STRUCTURES
AND/OR PAVEMENTS TO REMAIN.

4. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL NOTE ANY DISCREPANCIES BETWEEN EXISTING CONDITIONS
AS EXISTING IN THE FIELD AND AS REPRESENTED WITHIN THE PLANS AS SHOWN AND
ALERT THE ENGINEER BEFORE BIDDING THE PROJECT AND BEGINNING CONSTRUCTION.

5. WATER LINE SHALL BE A MINIMUM 8.0 FEET DEPTH UNLESS SHOWN OTHERWISE ON
PLANS.

6. VERIFY INVERT ELEVATIONS OF EXISTING SANITARY LINE AT POINT OF CONNECTION
WITH NEW SANITARY LINE PRIOR TO INSTALLING ANY NEW UTILITIES.

7. ALL CROSSING ELEVATIONS OF NEW UTILITIES & SIZES OF THE EXISTING UTILITIES ARE
BASED ON ASSUMED ELEVATIONS AND SIZES PROVIDED BY THE SURVEY.

8. ALL SANITARY SERVICE PIPE AND FITTINGS SHALL BE SDR-26 PVC.

9. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR OBTAINING TWO CONSECUTIVE
PASSING BACTERIOLOGICAL TESTS FROM THE PROPOSED WATER SERVICE.

10. THE APPLICANT SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR REPLACING ANY CONCRETE PAVEMENT
WHICH IS DAMAGED OR REMOVED AS A RESULT OF THE PROPOSED WATER, SANITARY,
STORM SEWER SERVICE INSTALLATION.

11. FOR WATER SERVICE LINES #12 AWG SOLID COPPER CLAD STEEL (CCS) WIRE WITH 30
MIL HIGH DENSITY POLYETHYLENE (HDPE) INSULATING JACKET, COLOR BLUE.

12. IF DEWATERING IS REQUIRED FOR THIS PROJECT, THE PUMP DISCHARGE SHALL BE
TREATED PRIOR TO BEING DISCHARGED OFF-SITE OR INTO A SURFACE WATER. THE
DISCHARGE SHALL BE VISUALLY CHECKED TO ENSURE THAT IT IS VISIBLY CLEAN WATER.
NO DEWATERING IS EXPECTED FOR THIS SITE DUE TO SANDY SOIL CONDITIONS.

13. CONTRACTOR SHALL PROVIDE TRAFFIC CONTROL PLAN FOR PAVEMENT REMOVAL,
UTILITY INSTALLATION, AND REPLACEMENT AS NEEDED.

14. CONTRACTOR SHALL CONFIRM FINAL ROOF DRAIN LOCATIONS WITH ARCHITECTURAL
DRAWINGS.

15. ALL STORM SEWER PIPE OVER 18" IN DIAMETER SHALL BE RCP, CLASS III (MIN.), WITH
FLEXIBLE WATERTIGHT JOINTS IN ACCORDANCE WITH ASTM C-361 OR PVC PIPE (ASTM
D3034, SDR 35) INSTALLED IN ACCORDANCE WITH ASTM D2321, UNLESS OTHERWISE
NOTED.

16. FLEXIBLE JOINTS AT STORM SEWER PIPE CONNECTIONS TO STRUCTURES:

16.1. IN ACCORDANCE WITH MINNESOTA PLUMBING CODE, PROVIDE FLEXIBLE JOINTS AT
ALL PIPE CONNECTIONS TO ALL STORM SEWER STRUCTURES.

16.2. ACCEPTABLE MANUFACTURERS / PRODUCTS:
16.3. FERNCO, "CONCRETE MANHOLE ADAPTORS" OR "LARGE-DIAMETER WATERSTOPS"
16.4. PRESS-SEAL, WATERSTOP GROUTING RINGS" OR APPROVED EQUAL

17. ANY MANHOLE, CATCH BASIN, STORM SEWER, SANITARY SEWER, DRAINTILE OR OTHER
POTENTIAL SOURCE FOR CONTAMINATION SHALL BE INSTALLED AT LEAST 10 FEET
HORIZONTALLY FROM ANY WATERMAIN PER MINNESOTA PLUMBING CODE. THIS
ISOLATION DISTANCE SHALL BE MEASURED FROM THE OUTER EDGE OF THE PIPE TO THE
OUTER EDGE OF THE CONTAMINATION SOURCE (OUTER EDGE OF STRUCTURES OR
PIPING OR SIMILAR).

18. CONTRACTOR SHALL STAKE LIMITS OF WALKS AND CURBING PRIOR TO INSTALLATION OF
GATE VALVES, CATCH BASINS AND MANHOLES. GATE VALVE AND MANHOLE LOCATIONS
SHALL BE ADJUSTED TO AVOID PLACEMENT OF THESE STRUCTURES IN WALKS AND
CURB AND GUTTER. CURB AND GUTTER SHALL BE STAKED TO ALLOW CURB INLET TYPE
CATCH BASINS TO BE PROPERLY LOCATED IN LINE WITH CURBING.

SCALE:

0' 20' 40'

1"=20'

D
ES

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

D
AT

E
N

O
.

R
EV

FI
LE

 N
O

.: 

D
W

G
 F

IL
E:

 

C
H

EC
KE

D
 B

Y:
 

D
R

AW
N

 B
Y:

 

D
ES

IG
N

 B
Y:

 

D
AT

E:
 

SHEET NO.

LA
N

D
 S

U
R

VE
YI

N
G

C
IV

IL
 E

N
G

IN
EE

R
IN

G
EN

VI
R

O
N

M
EN

TA
L 

SE
R

VI
C

ES
13

07
6 

FI
R

ST
 S

TR
EE

T,
 B

EC
KE

R
, M

N
 5

53
08

-9
32

2
TE

L:
 7

63
-2

62
-8

82
2 

  F
AX

: 7
63

-2
62

-8
84

4

B
O

G
A

R
T,

 P
ED

ER
SO

N
&

 A
SS

O
C

IA
TE

S,
 IN

C
.

CL
EA

RW
AT

ER
-C

LE
AR

LA
KE

FO
O

D 
SH

EL
F

Ci
ty

 o
f  

Cl
ea

rw
at

er
, W

rig
ht

 C
ou

nt
y,

 M
N

11
/1

6/
20

23

23
-0

45
7.

00

C
JD

D
M

L

D
M

L

NO
T F

OR
 C

ON
ST

RU
CT

IO
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
WOODED

AutoCAD SHX Text
WOODED

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
10



SW
PP

P

TEMPORARY EROSION AND SEDIMENT CONTROL SPECIFICATIONS

PART 1 GENERAL

1.01  SECTION INCLUDES

A. PREVENTION OF SEDIMENTATION OF WATERWAYS, OPEN DRAINAGE WAYS, AND STORM AND SANITARY
SEWERS DUE TO CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITIES.

1.02  REFERENCE STANDARDS

A. GENERAL PERMIT AUTHORIZATION TO DISCHARGE STORM WATER ASSOCIATED WITH CONSTRUCTION
ACTIVITY UNDER THE NATIONAL POLLUTANT DISCHARGE ELIMINATION SYSTEM. MINNESOTA PERMIT NO: MN
R100001.

1.03  PERFORMANCE REQUIREMENTS

A. COMPLY WITH ALL REQUIREMENTS OF THE MINNESOTA POLLUTION CONTROL AGENCY FOR EROSION AND
SEDIMENT CONTROL.

B. DO NOT BEGIN CLEARING, GRADING, OR OTHER WORK INVOLVING DISTURBANCE OF GROUND SURFACE
COVER UNTIL APPLICABLE PERMITS HAVE BEEN OBTAINED; FURNISH ALL DOCUMENTATION REQUIRED TO
OBTAIN APPLICABLE PERMITS.
1. OBTAIN AND PAY FOR PERMITS REQUIRED BY AUTHORITY HAVING JURISDICTION.

C. TIMING: PUT PREVENTIVE MEASURES IN PLACE PRIOR TO DISTURBANCE OF SURFACE COVER AND BEFORE
PRECIPITATION OCCURS.

D. EROSION OFF SITE: PREVENT EROSION OF SOIL AND DEPOSITION OF SEDIMENT ON OTHER PROPERTIES
CAUSED BY WATER LEAVING THE PROJECT SITE DUE TO CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITIES FOR THIS PROJECT.
1. PREVENT TRACKING OF MUD ONTO PUBLIC ROADS OUTSIDE SITE.
2. PREVENT MUD AND SEDIMENT FROM FLOWING ONTO PAVEMENTS.

E. SEDIMENTATION OF WATERWAYS OFF SITE: PREVENT SEDIMENTATION OF WATERWAYS OFF THE PROJECT
SITE, INCLUDING RIVERS, STREAMS, LAKES, PONDS, OPEN DRAINAGE WAYS, STORM SEWERS, AND SANITARY
SEWERS.
1. IF SEDIMENTATION OCCURS, INSTALL OR CORRECT PREVENTIVE MEASURES IMMEDIATELY AT NO COST TO

OWNER; REMOVE DEPOSITED SEDIMENTS; COMPLY WITH REQUIREMENTS OF AUTHORITIES HAVING
JURISDICTION.

F. MAINTENANCE: MAINTAIN TEMPORARY PREVENTIVE MEASURES UNTIL PERMANENT MEASURES HAVE BEEN
ESTABLISHED.

PART 2 PRODUCTS

2.01  MATERIALS

A. TEMPORARY SILT FENCE: WOVEN POLYPROPYLENE GEOTEXTILE RESISTANT TO COMMON SOIL CHEMICALS,
MILDEW, AND INSECTS; NON-BIODEGRADABLE; IN LONGEST LENGTHS POSSIBLE; FABRIC INCLUDING SEAMS
WITH THE FOLLOWING MINIMUM AVERAGE ROLL LENGTHS:

1. AVERAGE OPENING SIZE: 20 U.S. STD. SIEVE, MAXIMUM, WHEN TESTED IN ACCORDANCE WITH ASTM D4751.
2. PERMITTIVITY: 0.05 SEC^-1, MINIMUM, WHEN TESTED IN ACCORDANCE WITH ASTM D4491.
3. ULTRAVIOLET RESISTANCE: RETAINING AT LEAST 70 PERCENT OF TENSILE STRENGTH, WHEN TESTED IN

ACCORDANCE WITH ASTM D4355/D4355M AFTER 500 HOURS EXPOSURE.
4. TENSILE STRENGTH: 100 LB-F, MINIMUM, IN CROSS-MACHINE DIRECTION; 124 LB-F, MINIMUM, IN MACHINE

DIRECTION; WHEN TESTED IN ACCORDANCE WITH ASTM D4632.
5. ELONGATION: 15 TO 30 PERCENT, WHEN TESTED IN ACCORDANCE WITH ASTM D4632.
6. TEAR STRENGTH: 55 LB-F, MINIMUM, WHEN TESTED IN ACCORDANCE WITH ASTM D4533.
7. COLOR: MANUFACTURER'S STANDARD, WITH EMBEDMENT AND FASTENER LINES PREPRINTED.
8. SILT FENCE POSTS: ONE OF THE FOLLOWING, MINIMUM 5 FEET LONG:

a. STEEL U- OR T-SECTION, WITH MINIMUM MASS OF 1.33 LB PER LINEAR FOOT.
b. SOFTWOOD, 4 BY 4 INCHES IN CROSS SECTION.
c. HARDWOOD, 2 BY 2 INCHES IN CROSS SECTION.

B. TEMPORARY SEDIMENT LOGS: FILTER LOGS SHALL CONSIST OF TYPE WOOD FIBER BIOROLLS AND THE
REQUIREMENTS OF MNDOT SPEC. 3897.
1. SHALL BE ONE OF THE FOLLOWING.

a. SHALL BE SILTSOXX PERIMETER CONTROL BY FILTREXX, INC., OR EQUAL.

C. TEMPORARY SEDIMENT FILTER.
1. SHALL BE ONE OF THE FOLLOWING.

a. DROP-IN SEDIMENT FILTER UNIT THAT INSERTS INTO THE INLET.
1) SHALL BE FLEXSTORM PURE: PERMANENT INLET FILTER BY ADS, INC., OR EQUAL.

(a)PROVIDE CURB OPENING PROTECTION FOR EXISTING INLETS WITH CURB OPENINGS.

D. TEMPORARY ROCK CONSTRUCTION ENTRANCE.
1. ROCK SHALL BE CLEAN 1 TO 2 INCH WASHED ROCK.

E. TEMPORARY SLOPE EROSION PROTECTION.
1. SHALL BE ONE OF THE FOLLOWING.

a. EROSION CONTROL BLANKET.
1) SHALL CONSIST OF A UNIFORM WEB OF INTERLOCKING STRAW OR WOOD FIBERS SANDWICHED

BETWEEN AN ATTACHED TOP AND BOTTOM LAYER OF NET BACKING.
2) THE NETTING SHALL BE BIODEGRADABLE CONTAINING SUFFICIENT UV STABILIZATION FOR

BREAKDOWN TO OCCUR WITHIN A NORMAL GROWING SEASON.
3) STAPLES USED TO ANCHOR THE BLANKETS SHALL BE U-SHAPED, 11 GAUGE OR HEAVIER STEEL WIRE

HAVING A SPAN WIDTH OF 1 INCH AND A LENGTH OF 8 INCHES OR MORE FROM TOP TO BOTTOM
AFTER BENDING.

4) THE EROSION CONTROL BLANKETS ACCEPTABLE FOR USE ON THIS PROJECT INCLUDE:
(a)GEO-SYNTHETICS, INC., - LANDLOK 52.
(b)NORTH AMERICAN GREEN - S150.
(c)OR EQUAL.

b. BONDED FIBER MATRIX.
1) THE FIBERS SHALL BE COMPOSED OF 100% WOOD OR WOOD BY-PRODUCTS. A MINIMUM OF 25% OF

THE FIBERS SHALL AVERAGE 10.16 MM (0.4 INCHES) IN LENGTH AND 50% OR MORE SHALL BE
RETAINED ON A CLARK FIBER CLASSIFIER 24 MESH SCREEN. FIBERS SHALL BE COLORED WITH A
WATER SOLUBLE, NON-TOXIC DYE, TO AID IN UNIFORM APPLICATION OVER THE SITE.

2) THE BINDER SHALL BE A HYDRO COLLOID BASED (GUAR GUM) WITH ADDED SLOW-RELEASE AND
AGRICULTURAL BASED FERTILIZERS. THE BINDER SHALL NOT DISSOLVE OR DISPERSE UPON
REWETTING.

3) THE BFM SLURRY SHALL DRY TO FORM A CRUST APPROXIMATELY 3-6 MM (1/8 TO 1/4 INCHES) THICK
ADHERING TO THE SOIL SURFACE.

4) THE MOISTURE CONTENT OF THE MATRIX SHALL BE 12% +/- 3% BY WEIGHT.
5) THE MATRIX SHALL CONSIST OF MATERIALS THAT ARE 100% BIODEGRADABLE AND 100% BENEFICIAL

TO PLANT LIFE.
6) THE MATRIX SHALL PROVIDE 100% CONTINUOUS COVERAGE AND SHALL HAVE NO HOLES GREATER

THAN 1MM IN SIZE.
7) THE HYDRATED MIXTURE DENSITY SHALL BE APPROXIMATED BY A SLUMP TEST PRIOR TO

APPLICATION.
8) THE BFM MULCH: WATER RATIO SHALL BE AS MANUFACTURER RECOMMENDATIONS. THE MINIMUM

BFM MULCH TO WATER RATIO IS 50LBS BFM MULCH AND 100 GALLONS WATER. THE WATER RATE WILL
VARY BETWEEN 100 GALLONS AND 125 GALLONS PER 50LBS, DEPENDING ON WHICH OF THE
PRODUCTS IS USED.

9) THE BONDED FIBER MATRIX MULCH PRODUCTS ACCEPTABLE FOR USE ON THIS PROJECT INCLUDE.
(a)ECOAEGIS - MANUFACTURED BY CANFOR.
(b)SOIL GUARD - MANUFACTURED BY MAT, INC.
(c)CONWED 3000 - MANUFACTURED BY CONWED FIBERS, INC.

F. TEMPORARY PUMPED SEDIMENT CONTROL DEVICE.
1. NON-WOVEN GEOTEXTILE FABRIC SEWN INTO A BAG USING A DOUBLE NEEDLE MACHINE AND HIGH

STRENGTH THREAD.
a. SEAMS SHALL HAVE AN AVERAGE WIDTH STRENGTH OF 60LB/INCH AS PER ASTM D4883 AND MEET OR

EXCEED THE FOLLOWING.
1) GRAB TENSILE OF 205 LBS AS PER ASTM D 4632.
2) PUNCTURE OF 110 LBS AS PER ASTM D 4833.
3) FLOW RATE OF 95 GAL/MIN/SF AS PER ASTM D 4491.
4) PERMITTIVITY OF 1.5 SEC-1 AS PER ASTM D 4491.
5) MULLEN BURST STRENGTH OF 350 PSI AS PER ASTM D 3786.
6) AOS% OF 80% US SIEVE AS PER ASTM D 4751.

2. SPOUT LARGE ENOUGH TO ACCOMMODATE A 4 INCH DISCHARGE HOSE WITH STRAP TO TIE UNIT CLOSED.
3. SHALL BE ONE OF THE FOLLOWING.

a. DIRTBAG.
1) ACF ENVIRONMENTAL, INC., 2831 CARDWELL ROAD, RICHMOND, VIRGINIA 23234, 800-448-3636.

b. DANDY DEWATERING BAG.
1) DANDY PRODUCTS, INC., P.O. BOX 1980, WESTERVILLE, OHIO 43086, 800-591-2284.

c. OR EQUAL.

PART 3 EXECUTION

3.01 PREPARATION

A. SCHEDULE WORK SO THAT SOIL SURFACES ARE LEFT EXPOSED FOR THE MINIMUM AMOUNT OF TIME.

B. THE CONSTRUCTION SITE OPERATOR SHALL FOLLOW ALL REQUIREMENTS OF THE MINNESOTA STORMWATER
PERMIT NO. MN R100001.

C. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL COMPLETE AND SIGN THE NOTICE OF INTENT, OBTAIN THE OWNER'S SIGNATURE,
AND SUBMIT TO THE MPCA.

1. PROVIDE A SIGNED COPY TO THE OWNER.

3.03 INSTALLATION

A. TEMPORARY ROCK CONSTRUCTION ENTRANCE.
1. THE ROCK AREA SHALL BE A MINIMUM OF 6 INCHES DEEP, EXTEND THE FULL WIDTH OF THE

EGRESS AREA AND SHALL BE AT LEAST 50FT LONG, HOWEVER, LONGER ENTRANCES MAY BE
REQUIRED TO ADEQUATELY CLEAN THE TIRES.

2. GEOTEXTILE FABRIC MAY BE USED TO PREVENT MIGRATION OF MUD FROM THE UNDERLYING SOIL
INTO THE ROCK.

B. TEMPORARY SILT FENCES:
1. STORE AND HANDLE FABRIC IN ACCORDANCE WITH ASTM D4873.
2. USE NOMINAL 30 INCH HIGH BARRIERS, MINIMUM 60 INCH LONG POSTS SPACED AT 6 FEET MAXIMUM

SPACING.
3. EMBED BOTTOM OF FABRIC IN A TRENCH ON THE UPSLOPE SIDE OF FENCE, WITH 6 INCHES OF

FABRIC LAID FLAT ON BOTTOM OF TRENCH FACING UPSLOPE; BACKFILL TRENCH AND COMPACT.
4. MINIMUM POST EMBEDMENT.

a. STEEL POST = 24 INCHES, MINIMUM.
b. WOOD POST = 18 INCHES, MINIMUM.

5. DO NOT SPLICE FABRIC WIDTH; MINIMIZE SPLICES IN FABRIC LENGTH; SPLICE AT POST ONLY,
OVERLAPPING AT LEAST 18 INCHES, WITH EXTRA POST.

6. FASTEN FABRIC TO WOOD POSTS USING ONE OF THE FOLLOWING:
a. FOUR NAILS PER POST WITH 3/4 INCH DIAMETER FLAT OR BUTTON HEAD, 1 INCH LONG, AND 14

GAGE, 0.083 INCH SHANK DIAMETER.
b. FIVE STAPLES PER POST WITH AT LEAST 17 GAGE, 0.0453 INCH WIRE, 3/4 INCH CROWN WIDTH

AND 1/2 INCH LONG LEGS.
7. FASTEN FABRIC TO STEEL POSTS USING WIRE, NYLON CORD, OR INTEGRAL POCKETS.

C. TEMPORARY SEDIMENT LOGS:
1. PERIMETER CONTROL SHOULD BE INSTALLED PARALLEL TO   THE BASE OF THE SLOPE OR OTHER

DISTURBED AREA.
2. STAKES SHOULD BE INSTALLED THROUGH THE MIDDLE OF  THE PERIMETER CONTROL ON 10 FT

CENTERS, USING 2 IN BY 2 IN BY
3 FT  WOODEN STAKES.  IN THE EVENT STAKING IS NOT  POSSIBLE, I.E., WHEN PERIMETER CONTROL
IS USED   ON PAVEMENT, HEAVY CONCRETE BLOCKS SHALL BE USED   BEHIND THE PERIMETER
CONTROL TO HELP STABILIZE DURING RAIN EVENTS.

D. TEMPORARY SEDIMENT FILTERS.
1. DROP-IN SEDIMENT TRAP.

a. PLACE AS RECOMMENDED BY THE MANUFACTURER.

E. TEMPORARY PUMPED SEDIMENT CONTROL DEVICE.
1. INSTALL AS PER MANUFACTURER'S RECOMMENDATIONS.

F. TEMPORARY SLOPE EROSION PROTECTION.
1. PLACE AT ANY AND ALL FINISH SLOPES THAT ARE STEEPER THAN 10H:1V.
2. SEED AND FERTILIZE PER SPECIFICATION 32 9219 PRIOR TO INSTALLING TEMPORARY SLOPE

EROSION PROTECTION.
3. BONDED FIBER MATRIX.

a. INSTALL THE BFM AS PER THE MANUFACTURER'S INSTRUCTIONS WITH THE FOLLOWING MINIMUM
GUIDELINES.
1) THE BFM SHALL BE APPLIED WITH HYDRAULIC SPRAY EQUIPMENT BY A MANUFACTURER'S

CERTIFIED APPLICATOR.
2) APPLICATION SHALL BE DONE AT LEAST 24 HOURS IN ADVANCE OF PROJECTED RAINFALL TO

ALLOW THE BFM MULCH ADEQUATE TIME TO DRY.
3) THE BFM MULCH SHALL BE APPLIED IN TWO STAGES (ONE-HALF RATE) WITH AMPLE TIME TO

DEWATER THE FIRST APPLICATION.
4) THE BFM MULCH SHALL BE APPLIED FROM AT LEAST TWO ALTERNATE DIRECTIONS,

PREFERABLY 90 DEGREES APART, IF POSSIBLE, TO ENSURE ALL SOIL FACES ARE COVERED.
5) THE INSTALLATION RATE OF THE BFM MULCH SHALL BE 3500 LBS PER ACRE, MINIMUM AND

100% COVERAGE.
4. EROSION CONTROL BLANKET.

a. INSTALL AS PER MANUFACTURER'S RECOMMENDATIONS.

3.04 MAINTENANCE

A. INSPECT PREVENTIVE MEASURES WEEKLY, WITHIN 24 HOURS AFTER THE END OF ANY STORM THAT
PRODUCES 0.5 INCHES OR MORE RAINFALL AT THE PROJECT SITE, AND DAILY DURING PROLONGED
RAINFALL.

B. REPAIR DEFICIENCIES IMMEDIATELY.

C. TEMPORARY SILT FENCES:
1. PROMPTLY REPLACE FABRIC THAT DETERIORATES UNLESS NEED FOR FENCE HAS PASSED.
2. REMOVE SILT DEPOSITS THAT EXCEED ONE-THIRD OF THE HEIGHT OF THE FENCE.
3. REPAIR FENCES THAT ARE UNDERCUT BY RUNOFF OR OTHERWISE DAMAGED, WHETHER BY

RUNOFF OR OTHER CAUSES.

D. TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EXIT.
1. PERIODIC ADDITION OF ROCK, OR REMOVAL AND REPLACEMENT OF PAD SHALL BE PROVIDED AS

VOIDS BECOME FILLED WITH SOIL.

E. TEMPORARY PUMPED SEDIMENT CONTROL DEVICE.
1. REPLACE THE UNIT WHEN 1/2 FULL OF SEDIMENT OR WHEN SEDIMENT HAS REDUCED THE FLOW

RATE OF THE PUMP DISCHARGE TO AN IMPRACTICAL RATE.

F. PLACE SEDIMENT IN APPROPRIATE LOCATIONS ON SITE; DO NOT REMOVE FROM SITE.

3.05 CLEAN UP

A. REMOVE TEMPORARY MEASURE AFTER PERMANENT VEGETATION HAS BEEN ESTABLISHED.

B. WHERE REMOVAL OF TEMPORARY MEASURES WOULD LEAVE EXPOSED SOIL, SHAPE SURFACE TO AN
ACCEPTABLE GRADE AND FINISH TO MATCH ADJACENT GROUND SURFACES.

END OF SECTION

GENERAL INFORMATION

THIS STORMWATER POLLUTION PREVENTION PLAN IS PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE TO THE
NATIONAL POLLUTANT DISCHARGE ELIMINATION SYSTEM PERMIT NO. MN R1000001 FOR
STORMWATER DISCHARGES ASSOCIATED WITH CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITY.
PROJECT NAME: CLEARWATER-CLEAR LAKE FOOD SHELF
LOCATION: 1135 COUNTY ROAD 75, CLEARWATER, MN 55320
WRIGHT COUNTY
LAT/LONG: 45.41131/-94.04777

DESCRIPTION OF CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITY:

DEVELOPMENT CONSISTS OF PAVING, PARKING STALLS, BUILDING CONSTRUCTION,
GRADING, UTILITY INSTALLATION, INFILTRATION BASINS, AND TURF ESTABLISHMENT.

PROJECT CONTACTS

JESSE BABLER AND THE CONTRACTOR ARE RESPONSIBLE FOR  IMPLEMENTATION OF THE
SWPPP AND THE INSTALLATION, INSPECTION, AND  MAINTENANCE OF THE EROSION
PREVENTION AND SEDIMENT CONTROL BMP'S BEFORE AND DURING CONSTRUCTION.

SWPPP PREPARATION:
SWPPP PREPARER: DYLAN LANNES

-BOGART, PEDERSON & ASSOCIATES
TRAINING: ENGINEER IN TRAINING AND SWPPP DESIGNER (EXP 2026)
ADDRESS: 13076 FIRST STREET

BECKER, MN 53308
TELEPHONE: 763-262-8822
EMAIL; DLANNES@BOGART-PEDERSON,COM

OWNER:
OWNER CONTACT: JESSE BABLER
ADDRESS: P.O. BOX 34, BECKER, MN 55308
TELEPHONE: (763)-286-7332
EMAIL; JESSE@BB-BUILT.COM

CONTRACTOR (TO BE FILLED OUT BY THE CONTRACTOR):
BUSINESS NAME ___________________________
OWNER NAME ___________________________
MAILING ADDRESS ___________________________
CITY ___________________________
TELEPHONE ___________________________
EMAIL ___________________________
CONTACT NAME ___________________________
MAILING ADDRESS ___________________________
CITY ___________________________
TELEPHONE ___________________________
EMAIL ___________________________

ESTIMATED DATES OF CONSTRUCTION:

START DATE ___/____/____ (TO BE FILLED IN BY CONTRACTOR)
COMPLETION DATE ___/____/____ (TO BE FILLED IN BY CONTRACTOR)

PERMANENT STORMWATER DESIGN CALCULATIONS:

SEE THE STORM WATER MANAGEMENT REPORT FOR MORE INFORMATION. CONTACT
BOGART, PEDERSON & ASSOCIATES FOR REPORT. PROPOSED FLOW RATE IS LIMITED
THROUGH USE OF A INFILTRATION BASIN.
SOIL GROUP: B

DESCRIPTION OF EROSION CONTROL ACTIVITY:

EROSION CONTROL CONSISTS OF SILT FENCE PERIMETER CONTROL, TURF ESTABLISHMENT
THROUGH SEEDING AND EROSION CONTROL BLANKET, AND ROCK CONSTRUCTION
ENTRANCE PLACEMENT.

CUMULATIVE IMPERVIOUS SURFACES:

AREA OF DISTURBANCE: 1.16 ACRES
PRE-CONSTRUCTION IMPERVIOUS AREA: 0.00 ACRES
POST CONSTRUCTION IMPERVIOUS AREA: 0.61 ACRES
NEW IMPERVIOUS AREA:                  0.61 ACRES

RECEIVING WATERS:

STORM WATER FROM THIS SITE WILL BE DISCHARGED TO THE PROPOSED INFILTRATION
BASINS AND DIRECTED TO POND TO THE SOUTH.

PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS

THE PLAN SHEETS OF THIS PLAN SET INDICATE THE FOLLOWING ITEMS:
· THE PROJECT LOCATION AND CONSTRUCTION LIMITS.
· LOCATIONS OF IMPERVIOUS SURFACES.
· LOCATIONS OF AREAS NOT TO BE DISTURBED (E.G., BUFFER ZONES, WETLANDS, ETC.).
· STEEP SLOPE LOCATIONS.
· LOCATIONS OF ALL TEMPORARY AND PERMANENT EROSION AND SEDIMENT CONTROL

BMP'S TO BE INSTALLED ON THE PROJECT.
· THE DETAIL SHEETS INDICATE EROSION AND SEDIMENT CONTROL BMPS TO BE

INSTALLED ON THE PROJECT.
· IF DEWATERING IS REQUIRED FOR THIS PROJECT, THE PUMP DISCHARGE SHALL BE

TREATED PRIOR TO BEING DISCHARGED OFF-SITE OR INTO A SURFACE WATER. THE
DISCHARGE SHALL BE VISUALLY CHECKED TO ENSURE THAT IT IS VISIBLY CLEAN
WATER.

TEMPORARY SEDIMENT CONTROL PRACTICES

DOWN GRADIENT SILT FENCE AND SEDIMENT LOG INSTALLATIONS ARE TO BE INPLACE
PRIOR TO THE COMMENCEMENT OF ANY EARTHWORK OPERATIONS.

TOPSOIL IS TO BE WINDROWED ALONG THE CONSTRUCTION LIMITS AND PLACED AS SLOPE
DRESSING IMMEDIATELY FOLLOWING COMPLETION OF THE GRADING OPERATIONS, AS THE
GRADING OPERATIONS PROCEED.

TOPSOIL PLACEMENT ALONG THE EMBANKMENT SLOPES THOUGH THE WETLANDS AREA IS
TO BE SPREAD BY A LOW IMPACT CRAWLER TRACTOR OPERATING UP AND DOWN THE
SLOPES SO AS TO PROVIDE TRACK PRINTS PARALLEL WITH THE CONTOURS.

INSTALLATION OF MN/DOT CATEGORY 3 EROSION CONTROL BLANKET ALONG THE
EMBANKMENT SLOPES ADJACENT THE WETLANDS AREA.

ALL TEMPORARY SOILS STOCKPILES WILL REQUIRE AN EFFECTIVE MEANS OF SEDIMENT
CONTROL SUCH AS AN EROSION CONTROL BLANKET COVERING OR SILT FENCE
INSTALLATION ALONG THE TOE OF SLOPE.

ALL COMPLETED SWALES SLOPES AND BOTTOMS NOT DRAINING TOWARDS WETLAND AREAS
ARE TO BE STABILIZED WITHIN 7 DAYS.

TEMPORARY STABILIZATION WILL BE REQUIRED IN AREAS WHERE GRADING OPERATIONS
ARE SUSPENDED OR CEASED FOR A PERIOD OF 7 DAYS OR GREATER.

A ROCK CONSTRUCTION ENTRANCE FOR SEDIMENT CONTROL IS TO BE PROVIDED AT THE
PROJECT ENTRANCE ON COUNTY ROAD 75 NE.

STREET SWEEPING OF THE PAVED SURFACES WILL BE REQUIRED AS DIRECTED BY THE
ENGINEER.

TIMING OF EROSION CONTROL:

SILT FENCE AND SEDIMENT LOGS WILL BE INSTALLED PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION.

RIPRAP AND FILTER BLANKET WILL BE PLACED AT THE OUTLETS WITHIN 24 HOURS OF THE OUTLET PLACEMENT.

THE CONTRACTOR MUST STABILIZE ALL EXPOSED SOIL AREAS IMMEDIATELY FOLLOWING CONSTRUCTION
WHEREVER CONSTRUCTION WILL NOT OCCUR FOR A PERIOD GREATER THAN OR EQUAL TO 7 DAYS.

STABILIZATION WORK MUST BE COMPLETE WITHIN 7 CALENDAR DAYS AFTER THE CONSTRUCTION WORK IN
THAT AREA HAS TEMPORARILY OR PERMANENTLY CEASED.

AREAS THAT ARE WITHIN 200 FT OF A PUBLIC WATER MUST BE STABILIZED WITHIN 24 HOURS OF COMPLETING
CONSTRUCTION DURING PERIODS OF "WORK IN WATER RESTRICTIONS" FOR TIME PERIODS DECLARED BY THE
DNR.

THE CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE TO MAINTAIN THE DISTURBED AREA UNTIL VEGETATION IN ESTABLISHED.

ONCE VEGETATION IS ESTABLISHED AND CONSTRUCTION IS COMPLETE, THE SILT FENCE AND ANY OTHER
TEMPORARY EROSION CONTROL THAT IS NOT BIODEGRADABLE SHALL BE REMOVED.

STREET SWEEPING TO BE PROVIDED AS DIRECTED BY THE ENGINEER OR OWNER. THE CITY REQUIRES STREET
SWEEPING TO OCCUR WITHIN 8 HOURS OF NOTICE FROM THE CITY.

APPLYING MULCH, HYDROMULCH, TACKIFIER, POLYACRYLAMIDE OR SIMILAR EROSION PREVENTION PRACTICES
IS NOT ACCEPTABLE STABILIZATION IN ANY PART OF A TEMPORARY OR PERMANENT DRAINAGE DITCH OR
SWALE. BLANKETS OR OTHER APPROVED, BY THE ENGINEER, METHOD SHALL BE USED.

INSPECTION AND MAINTENANCE ACTIVITIES

THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR COORDINATING AND SCHEDULING THE WORK OF ALL
OPERATIONS, INCLUDING SUBCONTRACTORS AND UTILITY COMPANIES, SUCH THAT EROSION AND SEDIMENT
CONTROL MEASURES ARE FULLY EXECUTED FOR EACH OPERATION AND IN A TIMELY MANNER OVER THE
DURATION OF THE PROJECT. OPERATORS HAVE DAILY ACCESS TO THE PROJECT SITE. THE CONTRACTOR
SHALL BE FULLY RESPONSIBLE FOR THE SWPPP IMPLEMENTATION UNTIL THE ENTIRE SITE HAS UNDERGONE
FINAL STABILIZATION AND N.O.T HAS BEEN SUBMITTED TO THE MPCA.

THE CONTRACTOR IS TO PROVIDE A TRAINED INDIVIDUAL RESPONSIBLE FOR THE IMPLEMENTATION,
INSPECTION AND MAINTENANCE OF THE EROSION AND SEDIMENT CONTROL BMPS ON THE PROJECT. THAT
INDIVIDUAL IS TO BE IDENTIFIED AT THE PRE-CONSTRUCTION CONFERENCE AND LISTED IN THE MINUTES
THEREOF.

THE APPOINTED INDIVIDUAL IS TO PERFORM A ROUTINE INSPECTION OF THE ENTIRE SITE AT LEAST ONCE
EVERY SEVEN DAYS DURING CONSTRUCTION OPERATIONS AND WITHIN 24 HOURS AFTER A RAINFALL EVENT
GREATER THAN 0.5 INCHES IN 24 HOURS.

A INSPECTION FORM WILL BE PROVIDED BY THE CONTRACTOR. ANY DEFICIENCIES IN THE EROSION AND
SEDIMENT CONTROL BMPS ARE TO BE NOTED ON THE INSPECTION FORM AND CORRECTED BY THE END OF THE
NEXT BUSINESS DAY.

PERIMETER CONTROL DEVICES ARE TO BE REPAIRED OR REPLACED WHEN THEY ARE NO LONGER EFFECTIVE
OR WHEN THE SEDIMENT REACHES ONE-HALF THE HEIGHT OF THE DEVICE.

TRAINING DOCUMENTATION:
SWPPP IMPLEMENTATION, REVISING, AMENDING, AND INSPECTING (TO BE FILLED IN BY THE CONTRACTOR)

NAME OF INDIVIDUAL
OVERSEEING & INSPECTING ___________________________
DATE OF TRAINING ___________________________
NAME OF INSTRUCTOR ___________________________
ENTITY PROVIDING TRAINING ___________________________
CONTENT OF TRAINING ___________________________
TOTAL HOURS OF TRAINING ___________________________

BMP INSTALLATION, MAINTENANCE, AND REPAIR (TO BE FILLED IN BY THE CONTRACTOR)
NAME OF INDIVIDUAL
OVERSEEING & INSPECTING ___________________________
DATE OF TRAINING ___________________________
NAME OF INSTRUCTOR ___________________________
ENTITY PROVIDING TRAINING ___________________________
CONTENT OF TRAINING ___________________________
TOTAL HOURS OF TRAINING ___________________________

POLLUTION PREVENTION

FERTILIZERS ARE TO BE APPLIED ONLY IN THE AMOUNTS AS SPECIFIED AND WORKED INTO THE SOIL TO
MINIMIZE EXPOSURE TO STORMWATER RUNOFF.

ONSITE REFUELING OPERATIONS ARE TO BE CONDUCTED WITH CARE.  ANY INADVERTENT SPILLAGE OF FUEL
OR CHEMICALS IS TO BE IMMEDIATELY CLEANED UP, REMOVED FROM THE SITE AND DISPOSED OF IN
ACCORDANCE TO STATE AND LOCAL REGULATIONS.  MAJOR SPILLS ARE TO BE REPORTED TO THE MPCA 24
HOUR NOTIFICATION NETWORK AT 800 422 0798. ALL VEHICLES ON-SITE ARE TO BE MONITORED FOR LEAKS AND
SUBJECT TO ROUTINE PREVENTIVE MAINTENANCE EFFORTS TO REDUCE THE LIKELIHOOD OF LEAKAGE AND OR
SPILLS.

PORTABLE SANITARY WASTE FACILITIES ARE TO BE PROVIDED ONSITE AND EMPTIED ON A BI-WEEKLY BASIS.

CONCRETE BATCH TRUCKS WILL NOT BE ALLOWED TO DISCHARGE DRUM AND CHUTE WASHOUT DIRECTLY ON
THE GROUND. A PORTABLE WASHOUT RECEPTACLE IS TO BE PROVIDED BY THE CONTRACTOR AT THE
LOCATION AS PROVIDED BY THE OWNER.

FINAL STABILIZATION

FINAL STABILIZATION OCCURS WHEN 70 PERCENT OF THE PERVIOUS AREA IS COVERED WITH UNIFORM,
PERMANENT VEGETATION.

ALL TEMPORARY EROSION AND SEDIMENT CONTROL FEATURES ARE TO BE REMOVED AND THE NPDES NOTICE
OF TERMINATION IS TO BE PREPARED AND SUBMITTED TO THE MPCA.

LOCATION OF SWPPP REQUIREMENTS IN PROJECT PLAN

DESCRIPTION TITLE LOCATION

EROSION CONTROL DETAILS CONSTRUCTION DETAILS C7-8
EROSION CONTROL LOCATIONS EROSION CONTROL LOCATIONS C6

24 HOUR MPCA EMERGENCY NOTIFICATION:
TELEPHONE NUMBERS: 651-649-5451

800-422-0798

ESTIMATED QUANTITIES:

THE FOLLOWING QUANITITES IS AN ESTIMATED PRELIMINARY AMOUNT REQUIRED FOR SEDIMENT CONTROL
BMP'S AT THE START OF THE PROJECT. THIS ESTIMATE IS PROVIDED AS REQUIRED BY THE MINNESOTA
POLLUTION CONTROL AGENCY GENERAL STORMWATER PERMIT FOR CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITY. ANY
ADDITIONAL AND/OR REPLACEMENT BMP'S QUANTITIES WILL BE FURNISHED AND INSTALLED BY THE
CONTRACTOR AT NO ADDITIONAL COST TO THE OWNER.

ESTIMATED PRELIMINARY QUANTITIES AT START OF PROJECT:
ITEM      UNIT    ESTIMATED INITIAL QUANTITY
TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION ENTRANCE EA 1
TEMPORARY SEDIMENT FILTER EA X
TEMPORARY CONCRETE WASHOUT EA 1
TEMPORARY PUMP SEDIMENT CONTROL DEVICE EA X
TEMPORARY SEDIMENT LOGS LF 36
TEMPORARY SILT FENCE LF 1,564
EROSION CONTROL BLANKET (3N) SY 604

STORM WATER POLLUTION PREVENTION PLAN NARRATIVE:

SW
PP

P 
N

AR
RA

TI
VE

C57:
34

 A
M

N
:\P

ro
je

ct
s 

C
ur

re
nt

\2
3-

04
57

.0
0 

B&
B 

Bu
ilt

 C
le

ar
w

at
er

 F
oo

ds
he

lf\
C

iv
il\

C
AD

 F
ile

s\
C

ov
er

 S
W

PP
P 

D
et

ai
ls

.d
w

g
1/

31
/2

02
4

D
ES

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

D
AT

E
N

O
.

R
EV

FI
LE

 N
O

.: 

D
W

G
 F

IL
E:

 

C
H

EC
KE

D
 B

Y:
 

D
R

AW
N

 B
Y:

 

D
ES

IG
N

 B
Y:

 

D
AT

E:
 

SHEET NO.

LA
N

D
 S

U
R

VE
YI

N
G

C
IV

IL
 E

N
G

IN
EE

R
IN

G
EN

VI
R

O
N

M
EN

TA
L 

SE
R

VI
C

ES
13

07
6 

FI
R

ST
 S

TR
EE

T,
 B

EC
KE

R
, M

N
 5

53
08

-9
32

2
TE

L:
 7

63
-2

62
-8

82
2 

  F
AX

: 7
63

-2
62

-8
84

4

B
O

G
A

R
T,

 P
ED

ER
SO

N
&

 A
SS

O
C

IA
TE

S,
 IN

C
.

CL
EA

RW
AT

ER
-C

LE
AR

LA
KE

FO
O

D 
SH

EL
F

Ci
ty

 o
f  

Cl
ea

rw
at

er
, W

rig
ht

 C
ou

nt
y,

 M
N

11
/1

6/
20

23

23
-0

45
7.

00

C
JD

D
M

L

D
M

L

NO
T F

OR
 C

ON
ST

RU
CT

IO
N

CLEARWATER RIVER
(IMPAIRED STREAM)

IMPAIRED WATERS MAP

1 MILE RADIUS

SITE LOCATION

1 MI0.5 MI

MISSISSIPPI RIVER
(IMPAIRED STREAM)



SBL

SBL

SBL

SBL

SBL

SBL

SBL

SBL

SBL

SBL

SBL

SBL

SBL

SBL SBL

SBL

SBL

SBL

SBL

SBL

SBL

SBL

SBL

SBL

SBL

SBL

SBL

SBL

VV

VV

VV

|

|

|

|

|

|

|

|

|

|

|

|

|

|

MECHANICAL

ROOM

PROPOSED BUILDING
6,080 SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF
SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SFSF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

INSTALL 343 LF
OF TEMPORARY SILT FENCE

INSTALL 180 LF
OF TEMPORARY SILT FENCE

INSTALL 1041 LF
OF TEMPORARY SILT FENCE

INSTALL 1041 LF
OF TEMPORARY SILT FENCE

PLACE 12 LF OF BIO ROLL PLACE 12 LF OF BIO ROLL

PLACE 12 LF OF BIO ROLL

INSTALL 137 SY OF EROSION CONTROL BLANKET

INSTALL 467 SY OF EROSION CONTROL BLANKET

PLACE ±0.55 ACRES OF SEED

INSTALL ROCK CONSTRUCTION ENTRANCE/EXIT

ER
O

SI
O

N

ER
O

SI
O

N
 C

O
N

TR
O

L 
PL

AN

C67:
35

 A
M

N
:\P

ro
je

ct
s 

C
ur

re
nt

\2
3-

04
57

.0
0 

B&
B 

Bu
ilt

 C
le

ar
w

at
er

 F
oo

ds
he

lf\
C

iv
il\

C
AD

 F
ile

s\
Er

os
io

n 
C

on
tro

l.d
w

g
1/

31
/2

02
4

SF GRADING LIMITS AND PROPOSED
TEMPORARY SILT FENCE

TEMPORARY ROCK CONSTRUCTION ENTRANCE

PROPOSED RIP RAP

984 PROPOSED CONTOUR

EROSION CONTROL BLANKET (PER DETAIL)

EMERGENCY OVERFLOWE.O.F.

TEMPORARY SEDIMENT FILTER- HIGH FLOW

LEGEND:

FIBER-LOG ROLLS

EROSION CONTROL NOTES:
1. CONTRACTOR SHALL CONFINE CONSTRUCTION OPERATIONS TO THE

CONSTRUCTION/GRADING LIMITS SHOWN.

2. ALL WORK SHALL CONFORM TO THE MINNESOTA POLLUTION CONTROL AGENCY'S
STORM WATER PERMIT REQUIREMENTS. CONTRACTOR SHALL OBTAIN ALL PERMITS
AND COMPLY WITH ALL PERMIT REQUIREMENTS.

3. THE SITE SOIL EROSION AND SEDIMENT CONTROL FACILITIES SHALL BE INSTALLED
PRIOR TO ANY DEMOLITION OR GRADING OPERATIONS AND MAINTAINED TO CONFORM
WITH THE STANDARDS SPECIFIED BY THE PERMIT.

4. CONTRACTOR SHALL INSPECT TEMPORARY EROSION CONTROL MEASURES ON THE
ENTIRE SITE AT LEAST EVERY 7 DAYS AND WITHIN 24 HOURS OF ANY MEASURABLE
RAINSTORM. DAMAGED SILT FENCE OR OTHER EROSION CONTROL DEVICES OR
PRACTICES SHALL BE REPAIRED IMMEDIATELY. INSPECTION AND MAINTENANCE OF
DEVICES SHALL CONTINUE UNTIL THE SITE HAS UNDERGONE FINAL STABILIZATION
AND A NOTICE OF TERMINATION IS SUBMITTED TO THE MPCA.

5. ALL GRADING OPERATIONS SHALL BE CONDUCTED IN A MANNER TO MINIMIZE THE
POTENTIAL FOR SITE EROSION.

6. THE SITE SOIL EROSION AND SEDIMENT CONTROL FACILITIES SHALL BE INSTALLED
AND MAINTAINED TO CONFORM WITH THE STANDARDS SPECIFIED BY THE CITY OF
CLEARWATER  AND THE MPCA.

7. EROSION CONTROL MEASURES SHALL BE INSTALLED PRIOR TO THE DISTURBANCE OF
ANY AREAS AND MAINTAINED UNTIL ALL TRIBUTARY DISTURBED AREAS ARE
RESTORED.

8. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR THE REMOVAL OF ALL EROSION
CONTROL MEASURES, INCLUDING SILT FENCE AND BALES, UPON ESTABLISHMENT OF
PERMANENT VEGETATION IN SAID AREAS.

9. ALL SOILS TRACKED ONTO PAVEMENT OR ANY OTHER OFF-SITE AREA SHALL BE
REMOVED DAILY.

10. THE SITE SEDIMENT CONTROL FACILITIES FOR THE PROJECT MUST BE INSTALLED
PRIOR TO ANY GRADING OPERATION.

11. ALL AREAS DISTURBED DURING CONSTRUCTION SHALL BE RESTORED AND
VEGETATED AS SOON AS POSSIBLE. ANY FINISHED AREAS SHALL BE SEEDED AND
MULCHED WITHIN 7 DAYS AFTER FINISHED GRADING IS COMPLETED IN ACCORDANCE
TO MN/DOT 2575.

12. ALL DISTURBED AREAS SHALL BE REVEGETATED WITH MN/DOT SEED MIX, MULCHED,
FERTILIZED & DISK ANCHORED, PER THE FOLLOWING SCHEDULE:

STANDARD SEED MIX 25-131: 220 LB/AC.
INFILTRATION BASIN SEED MIX 33-261: 35 LB/AC.
FERTILIZER 22-5-10: 350 LB/AC.
MULCH TYPE 3: 2 TONS/AC.
13. CONTRACTOR SHALL INSTALL TEMPORARY SEDIMENT BMP'S SHOWN AND NOT SHOWN

ON PLANS DURING PHASING ON PROJECT TO COMPLY WITH MPCA, CITY INSPECTOR
AND DEVELOPER REQUEST.

N

APPROXIMATE EROSION CONTROL DEVICES
· SILT FENCE: 1,564 LF

· BIOLOG: 36 LF

· ROCK CONSTRUCTION: 1 EACH

· EROSION CONTROL BLANKET: 604 S.Y.

· RIP RAP (CLASS 2) X C.Y.

SCALE:

0' 20' 40'

1"=20'

D
ES

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

D
AT

E
N

O
.

R
EV

FI
LE

 N
O

.: 

D
W

G
 F

IL
E:

 

C
H

EC
KE

D
 B

Y:
 

D
R

AW
N

 B
Y:

 

D
ES

IG
N

 B
Y:

 

D
AT

E:
 

SHEET NO.

LA
N

D
 S

U
R

VE
YI

N
G

C
IV

IL
 E

N
G

IN
EE

R
IN

G
EN

VI
R

O
N

M
EN

TA
L 

SE
R

VI
C

ES
13

07
6 

FI
R

ST
 S

TR
EE

T,
 B

EC
KE

R
, M

N
 5

53
08

-9
32

2
TE

L:
 7

63
-2

62
-8

82
2 

  F
AX

: 7
63

-2
62

-8
84

4

B
O

G
A

R
T,

 P
ED

ER
SO

N
&

 A
SS

O
C

IA
TE

S,
 IN

C
.

CL
EA

RW
AT

ER
-C

LE
AR

LA
KE

FO
O

D 
SH

EL
F

Ci
ty

 o
f  

Cl
ea

rw
at

er
, W

rig
ht

 C
ou

nt
y,

 M
N

11
/1

6/
20

23

23
-0

45
7.

00

C
JD

D
M

L

D
M

L

NO
T F

OR
 C

ON
ST

RU
CT

IO
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
WOODED

AutoCAD SHX Text
WOODED

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
10



D
ET

AI
LS

DE
TA

IL
S

C77:
35

 A
M

N
:\P

ro
je

ct
s 

C
ur

re
nt

\2
3-

04
57

.0
0 

B&
B 

Bu
ilt

 C
le

ar
w

at
er

 F
oo

ds
he

lf\
C

iv
il\

C
AD

 F
ile

s\
C

ov
er

 S
W

PP
P 

D
et

ai
ls

.d
w

g
1/

31
/2

02
4

D
ES

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

D
AT

E
N

O
.

R
EV

FI
LE

 N
O

.: 

D
W

G
 F

IL
E:

 

C
H

EC
KE

D
 B

Y:
 

D
R

AW
N

 B
Y:

 

D
ES

IG
N

 B
Y:

 

D
AT

E:
 

SHEET NO.

LA
N

D
 S

U
R

VE
YI

N
G

C
IV

IL
 E

N
G

IN
EE

R
IN

G
EN

VI
R

O
N

M
EN

TA
L 

SE
R

VI
C

ES
13

07
6 

FI
R

ST
 S

TR
EE

T,
 B

EC
KE

R
, M

N
 5

53
08

-9
32

2
TE

L:
 7

63
-2

62
-8

82
2 

  F
AX

: 7
63

-2
62

-8
84

4

B
O

G
A

R
T,

 P
ED

ER
SO

N
&

 A
SS

O
C

IA
TE

S,
 IN

C
.

CL
EA

RW
AT

ER
-C

LE
AR

LA
KE

FO
O

D 
SH

EL
F

Ci
ty

 o
f  

Cl
ea

rw
at

er
, W

rig
ht

 C
ou

nt
y,

 M
N

11
/1

6/
20

23

23
-0

45
7.

00

C
JD

D
M

L

D
M

L

NO
T F

OR
 C

ON
ST

RU
CT

IO
N

30' MIN.

6" MINIMUM

1"-2" WASHED ROCK
AGGREGATE

50' MINIMUM

ROCK CONSTRUCTION EXIT
N.T.S.

C

C

A
B

A

B

8.

1.

4.

3.

6.

7.

5.

2.

EROSION CONTROL MATTING (FOR POND)
N.T.S.

WHEN USING CELL-O-SEED DO NOT SEED PREPARED AREA.  CELL-O-SEED MUST BE  INSTALLED WITH PAPER SIDE DOWN.

WITH APPROXIMATELY 12" (30cm) OF BLANKET EXTENDED BEYOND THE UP-SLOPE PORTION OF THE TRENCH.  ANCHOR THE BLANKET WITH A ROW OF
STAPLES/STAKES APPROXIMATELY 12" (30cm) APART IN THE BOTTOM OF THE TRENCH.  BACKFILL AND COMPACT THE TRENCH AFTER STAPLING.  APPLY
SEED TO COMPACTED SOIL AND FOLD REMAINING 12" (30cm) PORTION OF BLANKET BACK OVER SEED AND COMPACTED SOIL.  SECURE BLANKET OVER
COMPACTED SOIL WITH A ROW OF STAPLES/STAKES SPACED APPROXIMATELY 12" (30cm) APART ACROSS THE WIDTH OF THE BLANKET.

AGAINST THE SOIL SURFACE.  ALL BLANKETS MUST BE SECURELY FASTENED TO SOIL SURFACE BY PLACING STAPLES/STAKES IN APPROPRIATE
LOCATIONS AS SHOWN IN THE STAPLE PATTERN GUIDE.  WHEN USING OPTIONAL DOT SYSTEM , STAPLES/STAKES SHOULD BE PLACED THROUGH EACH
OF THE COLORED DOTS CORRESPONDING TO THE APPROPRIATE STAPLE PATTERN.

STAPLES STAGGERED 4" (10cm) APART AND 4" (10cm) ON CENTER TO SECURE BLANKETS. TM

12" (30cm) APART IN A 6" (15cm) DEEP X 6" (15cm) WIDE TRENCH.  BACKFILL AND COMPACT THE TRENCH AFTER STAPLING.

TO ENSURE PROPER SEAM ALIGNMENT, PLACE THE EDGE OF THE OVERLAPPING BLANKET (BLANKET BEING INSTALLED ON TOP) EVEN WITH THE
COLORED SEAM STITCH ON THE BLANKET BEING OVERLAPPED.

A DOUBLE ROW OF STAPLES STAGGERED 4" (10cm) APART AND 4" (10cm) ON CENTER OVER ENTIRE WIDTH OF THE CHANNEL.

IN A 6" (15cm) DEEP X 6" (15cm) WIDE TRENCH.  BACKFILL AND COMPACT THE TRENCH AFTER STAPLING.

CRITICAL POINTS
A. OVERLAPS AND SEAMS
B. PROJECTED WATER LINE
C. CHANNEL BOTTOM/SIDE

SLOPE VERTICES

NOTE:

* HORIZONTAL STAPLE SPACING SHOULD BE
ALTERED IF NECESSARY TO ALLOW STAPLES TO
SECURE THE CRITICAL POINTS ALONG THE
CHANNEL SURFACE.

** IN LOOSE SOIL CONDITIONS, THE USE OF STAPLE
OR STAKE LENGTHS GREATER THAN 6" (15 cm) MAY
BE NECESSARY TO PROPERLY ANCHOR THE
BLANKETS.

6"
(1

5 
C

M
)

6"
(1

5 
C

M
)

15
 C

M

1. THE SEDIMENT LOGS SHALL BE TRENCHED 4" INTO THE GROUND AND
SHALL BE STAKED BY STEEL FENCE POSTS OR 2"X 2" WOOD STAKES.

2. SOIL SHALL BE COMPACTED ON THE UPSLOPE SIDE OF LOGS.

12"

10" DIA. SEDIMENT LOG

COMPACTED SOIL TO
PREVENT PIPING

SEDIMENT-LADEN RUNOFF

STAKED AND ENTRENCHED 10" DIA.
SEDIMENT LOG

FILTERED RUNOFF

EROSION CONTROL
BLANKET

SEDIMENT FILTER LOG INSTALLATION
N.T.S.

PROPOSED EMBANKMENT

EXISTING GROUND

1. THE SEDIMENT LOGS SHALL BE TRENCHED 4" INTO THE GROUND AND
SHALL BE STAKED BY STEEL FENCE POSTS OR 2"X 2" WOOD STAKES.

2. SOIL SHALL BE COMPACTED ON THE UPSLOPE SIDE OF LOGS.

PROPEX-"SILT STOP" FABRIC

BACKFILL

2"x2"x4' WOOD STAKES @ 4'
O.C.

COMPACTED SOIL TO
PREVENT PIPING

SEDIMENT-LADEN RUNOFF

STAKED AND ENTRENCHED 10" DIA.
SEDIMENT LOG

FILTERED RUNOFF

EROSION CONTROL
BLANKET

10' MINIMUM

BURY BOTTOM
6" OF FABRIC

TEMPORARY SEDIMENT CONTROL DEVICES
N.T.S.

EMERGENCY OVERFLOW WEIR DETAIL
N.T.S.

PLAN OVERFLOW
ELEVATION

GEOTEXTILE FILTER FABRIC
MN/DOT 3733, TYPE 3

MN/DOT 3601 CL 3 RIPRAP

4'

8'

8'

18"

REFER TO GRADING PLAN

REFER TO PLANS 12"

6"

7"

6"

20"

12"

6"

7"

20"

OUTFLOW

INFLOW

CURB TAPER DETAIL

AGGREGATE BASE AS
PER ADJACENT
PAVEMENT SECTION

AGGREGATE BASE AS
PER ADJACENT
PAVEMENT SECTION

SLOPE TO MATCH
ADJACENT PAVEMENT

3
4" PER FOOT

CONCRETE B-612 CURB & GUTTER
N.T.S.

6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHANNEL INSTALLATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
SILT FENCE DETAIL (NTS)

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEDIMENT LOG INSTALLATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
R=3IN

AutoCAD SHX Text
R=3IN

AutoCAD SHX Text
TAPER LENGTH AS SHOWN ON SITE PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
TAPER



D
ET

AI
LS

DE
TA

IL
S

C87:
35

 A
M

N
:\P

ro
je

ct
s 

C
ur

re
nt

\2
3-

04
57

.0
0 

B&
B 

Bu
ilt

 C
le

ar
w

at
er

 F
oo

ds
he

lf\
C

iv
il\

C
AD

 F
ile

s\
C

ov
er

 S
W

PP
P 

D
et

ai
ls

.d
w

g
1/

31
/2

02
4

D
ES

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

D
AT

E
N

O
.

R
EV

FI
LE

 N
O

.: 

D
W

G
 F

IL
E:

 

C
H

EC
KE

D
 B

Y:
 

D
R

AW
N

 B
Y:

 

D
ES

IG
N

 B
Y:

 

D
AT

E:
 

SHEET NO.

LA
N

D
 S

U
R

VE
YI

N
G

C
IV

IL
 E

N
G

IN
EE

R
IN

G
EN

VI
R

O
N

M
EN

TA
L 

SE
R

VI
C

ES
13

07
6 

FI
R

ST
 S

TR
EE

T,
 B

EC
KE

R
, M

N
 5

53
08

-9
32

2
TE

L:
 7

63
-2

62
-8

82
2 

  F
AX

: 7
63

-2
62

-8
84

4

B
O

G
A

R
T,

 P
ED

ER
SO

N
&

 A
SS

O
C

IA
TE

S,
 IN

C
.

CL
EA

RW
AT

ER
-C

LE
AR

LA
KE

FO
O

D 
SH

EL
F

Ci
ty

 o
f  

Cl
ea

rw
at

er
, W

rig
ht

 C
ou

nt
y,

 M
N

11
/1

6/
20

23

23
-0

45
7.

00

C
JD

D
M

L

D
M

L

NO
T F

OR
 C

ON
ST

RU
CT

IO
N

MOUNTABLE CURB

3' TAPER

B612 CURB &

GUTTER

3" CURB TO 6" CURB TAPER
N.T.S.

NOTE:

1. L= DIMENSIONS AS SHOWN ON PLANS
CENTER OF STRIPE TO CENTER OF
STRIPE

2. STRIPE WIDTH SHALL BE 4" WIDE.

3. STRIPING ADJACENT TO 
ACCESSIBLE PARKING SPACES 
SHALL BE BLUE.

24"

NO
PARKING

96" MIN.96" MIN.
FOR VAN ACCESS96" MIN.

4" PAINTED STRIPING 1'-6"
O.C. AT 45° (BLUE
REFLECTIVE)

'BLUE' MARKING
ADJACENT TO
ACCESSIBLE
PARKING

FACE OF WALK OR
CURB

'WHITE' MARKING

21
6"

 M
IN

.

6'-0" 5'-0" 6'-0"

SLOPE UP
1:12 MAX

SLOPE UP
1:12 MAX

ACCESSIBLE PARKING SPACE AND HANDICAP RAMP
N.T.S.

SITE SIGNAGE WITH BOLLARD
N.T.S.

1
4 INCH STEEL CAP WELDED
AND GROUND SMOOTH

R7-8M
12INx18IN
WHITE ON BLUE

R7-8bP
12INx6IN
WHITE ON BLUE

NOTE:
1. ALL POSTS AND ANCHORS SHALL BE

12 GAUGE WITH HOLES ON ALL
FOUR SIDES

2. SIGNS SHALL BE IN ACCORDANCE
WITH THE MINNESOTA MANUAL ON
UNIFORM TRAFFIC CONTROL
DEVICES

R7-1 (MODIFIED)
12INx18IN
WHITE ON BLUE

FINISHED GROUND LINE
FINISHED
GROUND LINE

60"
60"

PARKING

42"

48"

18"

6 INCH SCHEDULE
40 STEEL PIPE
CONCRETE FILLED

18"

CONCRETE

1
4 INCH STEEL CAP WELDED
AND GROUND SMOOTH

42"

48"

18"

6 INCH SCHEDULE
40 STEEL PIPE
CONCRETE FILLED

18"

CONCRETE

EXTEND SUBGRADE PREPARATION AND AGGREGATE BASE
PLACEMENT 12IN BEYOND EDGE OF PAVEMENT WHEN
ADJACENT TO EXISTING OR NEW TURF

12"

2" BITUMINOUS WEAR COURSE

2" BITUMINOUS BASE COURSE

12"

  EXTEND SUBGRADE PREPARATION AND AGGREGATE
BASE PLACEMENT 12IN BEYOND EDGE OF PAVEMENT
WHEN ADJACENT TO EXISTING OR NEW TURF

4" CONCRETE

4" CLASS 5 AGGREGATE BASE

3
8" DIA. REINFORCING STEEL
SPACED AT 18IN ON CENTER EACH WAY

CONCRETE SIDEWALK
N.T.S.

BITUMINOUS PAVEMENT SECTION
N.T.S.

TACK COAT

8" CLASS 5 AGGREGATE BASE

CONCRETE B-612 CURB & GUTTER
N.T.S.

3/4" PER FT.

3/8" 3

1

3"R

BASE

TOP BIT. MAT

3/4" PER FT.

3

1

BASE

1/2" R

3" R3" R
TOP BIT. MAT

3" R

1/2" R

1/2" R

AGGREGATE BASE AS PER
ADJACENT PAVEMENT SECTION

AGGREGATE BASE AS PER
ADJACENT PAVEMENT SECTION

7"

12" 8"

7-
1/

2"
6"

13
-1

/2
"

6"

7"

12" 8"

7-
1/

2"
6"

13
-1

/2
"

6"

TAPER AND OPENING WIDTHS AS SHOWN ON THE PLANS

8.3% MAX

8.3% MAX

0%

2%

2%

2%

2%

PEDESTRIAN RAMP - TYPE 2
 N.T.S.

TAPER

OPENING

TAPER

INFILTRATION BASIN
N.T.S.

EMERGENCY OVERFLOW
(PER GRADING PLAN)

NOTE:

SEE GRADING AND EROSION CONTROL PLANS FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION ON
LOCATION OF INLET STRUCTURES, EMERGENCY OVERFLOW, ELEVATIONS, ETC.

FLARED END SECTION
(PER UTILITY PLAN)

UNCOMPACTED SUBGRADE

SEEDING WITH SEED MIX
33-261 (35 LB/AC)

EROSION CONTROL BLANKET (STRAW, CATEGORY 3N)
5' MIN.

SLOPE PER GRADING PLAN

RIP RAP
(PER GRADING PLAN)

4" OF TOPSOIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
VAN ACCESSIBLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO PARKING SIGN

AutoCAD SHX Text
VEHICLE ID  REQUIRED

AutoCAD SHX Text
UP TO $200 FINE  FOR VIOLATION 

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE ACCESSIBLE SIGN

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMPACTED SUBGRADE

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMPACTED SUBGRADE

AutoCAD SHX Text
TAPER LENGTH AS SHOWN ON SITE PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
TAPER

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%USTANDARD INFLOW GUTTER

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UOUTFALL GUTTER

AutoCAD SHX Text
CURB TAPER DETAIL













 
CITY COUNCIL 

CITY OF CLEARWATER 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2024-04 
 

REPLACING CLEARWATER FLOOD PLAIN ORDINANCE 
 
 
THE CITY OF CLEARWATER HEREBY ORDAINS AS FOLLOWS: 

 
The Clearwater Flood Plain Management Ordinance, codified as City Code Part II, Chapter 109, Flood Plain 
Management is hereby repealed in its entirety and replaced with the attached Exhibit A.  

 
Effective Date. This ordinance shall be in full force and effect upon its passage and publication, which 
is hereby authorized by the City Council. 

 
 

ADOPTED THIS ___ DAY OF ________ 2024 
 
 

ATTEST:      APPROVED BY: 

 

____________________________________  ____________________________________ 
Annita M. Smythe, City Administrator  Andrea Lawrence Wheeler, Mayor 
  



 

EXHIBIT A 
Contents 

SECTION 1.0  STATUTORY AUTHORIZATION AND PURPOSE ................................................................................ 3 

SECTION 2.0  DEFINITIONS ................................................................................................................................... 3 

SECTION 3.0  JURISDICTION AND DISTRICTS ........................................................................................................ 6 

SECTION 4.0  REQUIREMENTS FOR ALL FLOODPLAIN DISTRICTS ......................................................................... 7 

SECTION 5.0  FLOODWAY DISTRICT ...................................................................................................................... 9 

SECTION 6.0  FLOOD FRINGE DISTRICT ............................................................................................................... 11 

SECTION 7.0  RESERVED FOR GENERAL FLOODPLAIN DISTRICT ......................................................................... 13 

SECTION 8.0  SUBDIVISION STANDARDS ............................................................................................................ 13 

SECTION 9.0  PUBLIC AND PRIVATE UTILITIES, SERVICE FACILITES, ROADS, BRIDGES, AND RAILROADS .......... 14 

SECTION 10.0  MANUFACTURED HOMES AND RECREATIONAL VEHICLES ........................................................... 14 

SECTION 11.0  ADMINISTRATION ......................................................................................................................... 15 

SECTION 12.0  NONCONFORMITIES ..................................................................................................................... 17 

SECTION 13.0  VIOLATIONS AND PENALTIES ........................................................................................................ 18 

SECTION 14.0  AMENDMENTS .............................................................................................................................. 19 

 



 

 

SECTION 1.0  STATUTORY AUTHORIZATION AND PURPOSE 

1.1 Statutory Authorization.  This floodplain ordinance is adopted pursuant to the authorization and policies 
contained in Minnesota Statutes, Chapter 103F; Minnesota Rules, parts 6120.5000 – 6120.6200; the 
rules and regulations of the National Flood Insurance Program (NFIP) in 44 CFR § 59 to 78; and the 
planning and zoning enabling legislation in Minnesota Statutes, Chapter 462. 

1.2   Purpose 

1.21 This ordinance regulates development in the flood hazard areas of the City of Clearwater. These 
flood hazard areas are subject to periodic inundation, which may result in loss of life and 
property, health and safety hazards, disruption of commerce and governmental services, 
extraordinary public expenditures for flood protection and relief, and impairment of the tax base. 
It is the purpose of this ordinance to promote the public health, safety, and general welfare by 
minimizing these losses and disruptions.  

1.22 This ordinance is adopted in the public interest to promote sound land use practices, and 
floodplains are a land resource to be developed in a manner which will result in minimum loss of 
life and threat to health, and reduction of private and public economic loss caused by flooding. 

1.23 This ordinance is adopted to maintain eligibility in the National Flood Insurance Program. 

1.24 This ordinance is also intended to preserve the natural characteristics and functions of 
watercourses and floodplains in order to moderate flood and stormwater impacts, improve 
water quality, reduce soil erosion, protect aquatic and riparian habitat, provide recreational 
opportunities, provide aesthetic benefits and enhance community and economic development. 

1.3 Abrogation and Greater Restrictions.  It is not intended by this ordinance to repeal, abrogate, or impair 
any existing easements, covenants, or other private agreements. The standards in this ordinance take 
precedence over any less restrictive, conflicting local laws, ordinances, or codes. All other ordinances 
inconsistent with this ordinance are hereby repealed to the extent of the inconsistency only. 

1.4 Warning and Disclaimer of Liability.  This ordinance does not imply that areas outside the floodplain 
districts or land uses permitted within such districts will be free from flooding or flood damages. Not all 
flood risk is mapped. Larger floods do occur and the flood height may be increased by man-made or 
natural causes, such as ice jams or bridge openings restricted by debris. This ordinance does not create 
liability on the part of the City of Clearwater or its officers or employees for any flood damages that 
result from reliance on this ordinance or any administrative decision lawfully made hereunder. 

1.5 Severability.  If any section, clause, provision, or portion of this ordinance is adjudged unconstitutional 
or invalid by a court of law, the remainder of this ordinance shall not be affected and shall remain in full 
force. 

SECTION 2.0  DEFINITIONS 

2.1 Definitions.  Unless specifically defined, words or phrases used in this ordinance must be interpreted 
according to common usage and so as to give this ordinance its most reasonable application. 

2.111 Accessory Structure.  A structure, as defined in this ordinance, that is on the same parcel of 
property as, and is incidental to, the principal structure or use; an accessory structure specifically 
excludes structures used for human habitation. 

2.112 Base Flood.  The flood having a one-percent chance of being equaled or exceeded in any given 
year. “Base flood” is synonymous with the term “regional flood” used in Minnesota Rules, part 
6120.5000. 



 

 

2.113 Base Flood Elevation (BFE).  The elevation of the base flood, regional flood, or one-percent 
annual chance flood. The term “base flood elevation” is used in the flood insurance study. 

2.114 Basement.  Any area of a structure, including crawl spaces, having its floor subgrade (below 
ground level) on all four sides, regardless of the depth of excavation below ground level. 

2.115 Building.  See Structure. 

2.116 Channel.  A natural or artificial depression of perceptible extent, with definite bed and banks to 
confine and conduct flowing water either continuously or periodically. 

2.117 Conditional Use.  A land use or development that would not be appropriate generally, but may 
be allowed with appropriate restrictions upon a finding that certain conditions as detailed in the 
zoning ordinance exist, the use or development conforms to the comprehensive land use plan of 
the community, and the use is compatible with the existing neighborhood. 

2.118 Critical Facilities.  Buildings and structures that contain essential facilities and services necessary 
for emergency response and recovery, or that pose a substantial risk to the public in the event of 
failure, disruption of function, or damage by flooding. Specifically, this includes facilities 
identified as Flood Design Class 4 in ASCE 24-14, Flood Resistant Design and Construction, as 
amended. Examples include health care facilities, facilities required for emergency response, 
power generating stations, communications towers, or electrical substations. 

2.119 Development.  Any man-made change to improved or unimproved real estate, including, but not 
limited to buildings or other structures, mining, dredging, filling, grading, paving, excavation or 
drilling operations, or storage of equipment or materials. 

2.120 Equal Degree of Encroachment.  A method of determining the location of floodway boundaries 
so that floodplain lands on both sides of a stream are capable of conveying a proportionate share 
of flood flows. 

2.121 FEMA.  Federal Emergency Management Agency. 

2.122 Farm Fence.  An open type of fence of posts and horizontally run wire, further specified in 
Minnesota Statutes, section 344.02, Subd. 1(a-d). 

2.123 Flood.  A temporary rise in the stream flow or water surface elevation from any source that 
results in the inundation of normally dry land areas. 

2.124 Flood Fringe.  The portion of the one-percent annual chance floodplain located outside of the 
floodway.  

2.125 Flood Insurance Rate Map (FIRM).  An official map on which the Federal Insurance Administrator 
has delineated both the special flood hazard areas and the risk premium zones applicable to the 
community. A FIRM that has been made available digitally is called a Digital Flood Insurance Rate 
Map (DFIRM). 

2.126 Flood Insurance Study (FIS).  The study referenced in Section 3.2, which is an examination, 
evaluation and determination of flood hazards, and if appropriate, corresponding surface 
elevations, or an examination, evaluation, and determination of mudslide (i.e. mudflow) and/or 
flood-related erosion hazards. 

2.127 Floodplain.  The beds, channel and the areas adjoining a wetland, lake or watercourse, or other 
source which have been or hereafter may be inundated by the base flood. 



 

 

2.128 Floodproofing.  A combination of structural and non-structural additions, changes, or 
adjustments to properties and structures subject to flooding, primarily for the reduction or 
elimination of flood damages. 

2.129 Floodway.  The bed of a wetland or lake and the channel of a watercourse and those portions of 
the adjoining floodplain which must be reserved to carry or store the base flood discharge 
without cumulatively increasing the water surface elevation more than one-half foot. 

2.130 General Floodplain. Those floodplains designated on the Flood Insurance Rate Maps referenced 
in Section 3.2, but that do not have a delineated floodway. 

2.131 Light Duty Truck. Any motor vehicle that has all three of the following: 

A. 8,500 pounds Gross Vehicle Weight Rating or less; 

B. vehicle curb weight of 6,000 pounds or less; and 

C. basic vehicle frontal area less than 45 square feet. 

2.132 Lowest Floor.  The lowest floor of the lowest enclosed area (including basement).  An unfinished 
or flood resistant enclosure, used solely for parking of vehicles, building access, or storage in an 
area other than a basement area, is not considered a building’s lowest floor; provided, that such 
enclosure is not built so as to render the structure in violation of the applicable non-elevation 
design requirements of 44 CFR § 60.3. 

2.133 Manufactured Home.  A structure, transportable in one or more sections, which is built on a 
permanent chassis and is designed for use with or without a permanent foundation when 
attached to the required utilities.  The term “manufactured home” does not include the term 
“recreational vehicle.” 

2.134 New Construction.  Structures for which the start of construction commenced on or after the 
effective date of an adopted floodplain management regulation, and includes any subsequent 
improvements to such structures. 

2.135 Principal Structure.  The main building or other structure on a lot that is utilized for the 
property’s principal use. 

2.136 Reach.  A hydraulic engineering term to describe a longitudinal segment of a stream or river 
influenced by a natural or man-made obstruction. In an urban area, the segment of a stream or 
river between two consecutive bridge crossings would most typically constitute a reach. 

2.137 Recreational Vehicle.  A vehicle that is built on a single chassis, is 400 square feet or less when 
measured at the largest horizontal projection, is designed to be self-propelled or permanently 
towable by a light duty truck, and is designed primarily not for use as a permanent dwelling but 
as temporary living quarters for recreational, camping, travel, or seasonal use. Those vehicles not 
meeting this definition shall be considered a structure for the purposes of this ordinance. For the 
purposes of this ordinance, the term recreational vehicle is synonymous with the term “travel 
trailer/travel vehicle.” 

2.138 Regulatory Flood Protection Elevation (RFPE).  An elevation that is one foot above the elevation 
of the base flood plus any increases in the water surface elevation caused by encroachments on 
the floodplain that result from designation of a floodway. These increases in water surface 
elevations are typically identified in the Floodway Data Tables, found in the Flood Insurance 
Study. 



 

 

2.139 Repetitive Loss.  Flood related damages sustained by a structure on two separate occasions 
during a ten year period for which the cost of repairs at the time of each such flood event on the 
average equals or exceeds 25% of the market value of the structure before the damage occurred. 

2.140 Stage Increase. Any increase in the water surface elevation during the one-percent annual 
chance flood caused by encroachments on the floodplain. 

2.141 Start of Construction. Includes substantial improvement, and means the date the permit was 
issued, provided the actual start of construction, repair, reconstruction, rehabilitation, addition 
placement, or other improvement was within 180 days of the permit date. The actual start 
means either the first placement of permanent construction of a structure on a site, such as the 
pouring of slab or footings, the installation of piles, the construction of columns, or any work 
beyond the stage of excavation; or the placement of a manufactured home on a foundation. 
Permanent construction does not include land preparation, such as clearing, grading and filling; 
nor does it include the installation of streets and/or walkways; nor does it include excavation for 
a basement, footings, piers, foundations, or the erection of temporary forms; nor does it include 
the installation on the property of accessory buildings, such as garages or sheds not occupied as 
dwelling units or not part of the main structure. For a substantial improvement, the actual start 
of construction means the first alteration of any wall, ceiling, floor, or other structural part of a 
building, whether or not that alteration affects the external dimensions of the building. 

2.142 Structure.  A roofed building, including a gas or liquid storage tank, that is principally above 
ground, as well as a manufactured home. Recreational vehicles not considered travel ready, as 
detailed in Section 10.22, shall also be considered a structure for the purposes of this ordinance. 

2.143 Subdivision.  Land that has been divided for the purpose of sale, rent, or lease, including planned 
unit developments. 

2.144 Substantial Damage.  Damage of any origin sustained by a structure where the cost of restoring 
the structure to its before damaged condition would equal or exceed 50 percent of the market 
value of the structure before the damage occurred. 

2.145 Substantial Improvement.  Any reconstruction, rehabilitation, addition, or other improvement of 
a structure, the cost of which equals or exceeds 50 percent of the market value of the structure 
before the “start of construction” of the improvement. This term includes structures that have 
incurred “substantial damage,” regardless of the actual repair work performed. The term does 
not, however, include either: 

A. Any project for improvement of a structure to correct existing violations of state or local 
health, sanitary, or safety code specifications which have been identified by the local code 
enforcement official and which are the minimum necessary to assure safe living conditions; or 

B. Any alteration of a “historic structure,” provided that the alteration will not preclude the 
structure’s continued designation as a “historic structure.”  For the purpose of this ordinance, 
“historic structure” is defined in 44 CFR § 59.1. 

2.146 Variance.  “Variance” means the same as that defined in 44 CFR § 59.1 and Minnesota Statutes, 
Section 462.357, Subd. 6(2).  

2.147 Watercourse.  A channel in which a flow of water occurs either continuously or intermittently in 
a definitive direction. The term applies to either natural or artificially constructed channels. 

SECTION 3.0  JURISDICTION AND DISTRICTS 



 

 

3.1 Lands to Which Ordinance Applies.  This ordinance applies to all lands within the jurisdiction of the City 
of Clearwater within the boundaries of the Floodway, Flood Fringe and General Floodplain Districts. 

3.11 The Floodway, Flood Fringe or General Floodplain Districts are overlay districts. The standards 
imposed in the overlay districts are in addition to any other requirements. In case of a conflict, 
the more restrictive standards will apply. 

3.12 Where a conflict exists between the floodplain limits illustrated on the official floodplain maps 
and actual field conditions, the Base Flood Elevation (BFE) shall be the governing factor in 
locating the outer boundaries of the one-percent annual chance floodplain. 

3.13 Persons contesting the location of the district boundaries will be given a reasonable opportunity 
to present their case to the Planning Commission and to submit technical evidence.  

3.2 Incorporation of Maps by Reference.  The following maps together with all attached material are hereby 
adopted by reference and declared to be a part of the official zoning map and this ordinance.  

• Flood Insurance Studies 
o Flood Insurance Study for Stearns County and Incorporated Areas, dated February 

16, 2012 
o Flood Insurance Study for Wright County and Incorporated Areas, dated June 20, 

2024 
• Flood Insurance Rate Map Panels 

o Stearns County Panel 27145C0895E, dated February 16, 2012 
o Wright County Panel 27171C0015D, dated June 20, 2024 
o Wright County Panel 27171C0016D, dated June 20, 2024 
o Wright County Panel 27171C0017D, dated June 20, 2024 
o Wright County Panel 27171C0018D, dated June 20, 2024 
o Wright County Panel 27171C0019D, dated June 20, 2024 

These materials are on file at City Hall. 

3.3 Districts 

3.31 Floodway District.  Those areas within Zones AE delineated within floodway areas as shown on 
the Flood Insurance Rate Maps referenced in Section 3.2. 

3.32 Flood Fringe District.  Those areas within Zones AE located outside of the delineated floodway, as 
shown on the Flood Insurance Rate Maps referenced in Section 3.2. 

3.33 Reserved for General Floodplain District. 

3.4 Annexations.  The Flood Insurance Rate Map panels referenced in Section 3.2 may include floodplain 
areas that lie outside of the corporate boundaries of the City of Clearwater at the time of adoption of 
this ordinance.  If any of these floodplain land areas are annexed into the City of Clearwater after the 
date of adoption of this ordinance, the newly annexed floodplain lands will be subject to the provisions 
of this ordinance immediately upon the date of annexation. Annexations into panels not referenced in 
Section 3.2 require ordinance amendment in accordance with Section 14.0.  

SECTION 4.0  REQUIREMENTS FOR ALL FLOODPLAIN DISTRICTS 

4.1 Permit Required.  A permit must be obtained from the Zoning Administrator to verify compliance with 
all applicable standards outlined in this ordinance prior to the following uses or activities: 

4.11 The erection, addition, modification, rehabilitation, repair, or alteration of any building, 
structure, or portion thereof.  Normal maintenance requires a permit to determine if such work, 



 

 

either separately or in conjunction with other planned work, constitutes a substantial 
improvement, as specified in Section 12.13. 

4.12 The construction of a fence, pool, deck, or placement of anything that may cause a potential 
obstruction. Farm fences, as defined in Section 2.0 of this ordinance, are not considered to be an 
obstruction, and as such, do not require a permit. 

4.13 The change or expansion of a nonconforming use. 

4.14 The repair of a structure that has been damaged by flood, fire, tornado, or any other source. 

4.15 The placement of fill, excavation, utilities, on-site sewage treatment systems, or other service 
facilities. 

4.16 The storage of materials or equipment, in conformance with Section 4.32. 

4.17 Relocation or alteration of a watercourse (including stabilization projects or the construction of 
new or replacement dams, culverts and bridges). A local permit is not required if a public waters 
work permit has been obtained from the Department of Natural Resources, unless a significant 
area above the ordinary high water level is also to be disturbed. 

4.18 Any other type of “development,” as defined in Section 2.0 of this ordinance. 

4.2 No Permit Required.  Certain uses or activities may be exempt from obtaining a permit, such as planting 
a garden, farming, or other obviously insignificant activities such as putting up a mailbox or flagpole. The 
continuation of existing uses, when the associated activities do not encroach further on the regulatory 
floodplain or trigger associated standards in this ordinance, do not require a permit. 

4.3 Minimum Development Standards 

4.31 All development must: 

A. Be designed (or modified) and adequately anchored to prevent flotation, collapse, or lateral 
movement resulting from hydrodynamic and hydrostatic loads, including the effects of 
buoyancy; 

B. Be constructed with materials and equipment resistant to flood damage; 

C. Be constructed by methods and practices that minimize flood damage; 

D. Be constructed with heating, ventilation, duct work, and air conditioning equipment and 
other service facilities elevated at least up to the Regulatory Flood Protection Elevation 
(RFPE). Water, sewage, electrical, and other utility lines below the RFPE shall be constructed 
so as to prevent water from entering or accumulating within them during conditions of 
flooding; 

E. Be reasonably safe from flooding and consistent with the need to minimize flood damage; 

F. Be assured to provide adequate drainage to reduce exposure to flood hazards; 

G. Not be detrimental to uses in adjoining areas; and 

H. Not adversely affect the efficiency or restrict the flood carrying capacity of the channel and 
adjoining floodplain of any tributary watercourse or drainage system. 

I. Ensure that any fill or other materials are protected from erosion, discharge, and sediment 
entering surface waters by the ese of vegetative cover or other methods as soon as possible. 

4.32 Materials that, in time of flooding, are buoyant, flammable, explosive, or could be injurious to 
human, animal, or plant life shall be stored at or above the Regulatory Flood Protection Elevation 



 

 

(RFPE), floodproofed, or protected by other measures as approved by the Zoning Administrator. 
Storage of materials likely to cause pollution of the waters, such as sewage; sand; rock; wrecked 
and discarded equipment; dredged spoil; municipal, agricultural or industrial waste; and other 
wastes as further defined in Minnesota Statutes, Section 115.01, are prohibited unless adequate 
safeguards approved by the Minnesota Pollution Control Agency are provided. For projects not 
requiring approvals by the Minnesota Pollution Control Agency, adequate safeguards must be 
approved by the Zoning Administrator prior to issuance of a permit. 

4.33 Critical facilities shall be located so that the lowest floor is not less than two feet above the Base 
Flood Elevation (BFE), or the 0.2% annual chance flood elevation, whichever is higher. 

Table 1. Summary of Permitting Requirements for Structures  

Structure Type Floodway Flood Fringe Standards* 

Accessory Structures – on fill 
Only specific uses and 
types allowed – with CUP 

Allowed with Permit 6.23.D(2)  

Accessory Structures – Alt. 
Elevation Methods 

Only specific uses and 
types allowed – with CUP 

Allowed with Permit 6.23.D(3) 

Accessory Structures – Wet 
Floodproofing 

Only specific uses and 
types allowed – with CUP 

Allowed with Permit 6.23.D(1) 

Accessory Structures – Dry 
(watertight) Floodproofing 

Only specific uses and 
types allowed – with CUP 

Allowed with Permit 6.23.D(4) 

    

Residential – on fill Not allowed Allowed with Permit 6.21.A 

Residential – Alt. Elevation 
Methods 

Not allowed Allowed with CUP 6.41 

Residential – Dry (watertight) 
Floodproofing and/or Basement 
Construction below RFPE 

Not allowed Not allowed N/A 

    

Non-Residential – on fill Not allowed Allowed with Permit 6.22.A 

Non-Residential – Alt. Elevation 
Methods 

Not allowed Allowed with Permit 6.22.B 

Non-Residential – Dry (watertight) 
Floodproofing and/or Basement 
Construction below RFPE 

Not allowed Allowed with Permit 6.22.C 

*Note - many of these standards are cross-referenced 

SECTION 5.0  FLOODWAY DISTRICT 

5.1 Permitted Uses in Floodway.  Development allowed in the floodway district is limited to that which has 
low flood damage potential and will not obstruct flood flows, increase velocities, or increase the water 
surface elevations of the one-percent annual chance flood. The following uses and activities may be 
allowed with a permit, subject to the standards in Section 5.2: 



 

 

5.11 Agricultural uses, recreational uses, parking lots, loading areas, airport landing strips, water 
control structures, navigational facilities, as well as public open space uses. 

5.12 Roads, driveways, railroads, trails, bridges, and culverts. 

5.13 Public utility facilities and water-oriented industries which must be in or adjacent to 
watercourses. 

5.14 Grading, filling, land alterations, and shoreline stabilization projects. 

5.15 No structures, as defined in Section 2.0, are allowed in the Floodway District, except structures 
accessory to the uses detailed in Sections 5.11 and 5.31, which require a CUP under Section 5.32. 

5.16 Levees or dikes intended to protect agricultural crops, provided the top of the dike does not 
exceed the 10-percent annual chance flood event. 

5.2 Standards for Permitted Uses in Floodway. In addition to the applicable standards detailed in Section 
4.0: 

5.21 The applicant must demonstrate that the development will not result in any of the following 
during the one-percent annual chance flood: cause a stage increase of 0.00 feet or greater, 
obstruct flood flows, or increase velocities. This shall be demonstrated through hydrologic and 
hydraulic analysis performed by a professional engineer, or using other standard engineering 
practices (e.g. projects that restore the site to the previous cross-sectional area). This is 
commonly documented through a “no-rise certification.” 

5.22 Any development that would result in a stage increases greater than 0.00 feet may only be 
allowed with a permit if the applicant has applied for and received approval for a Conditional 
Letter of Map Revision (CLOMR) in accordance with 44 CFR § 65.12. Map revisions must follow 
the procedures in Sections 11.15 and 14.0. 

5.23 Any development resulting in decreases to the water surface elevation of the base flood 
identified in the Flood Insurance Study requires a Letter of Map Revision (LOMR) following the 
procedures in Sections 11.15 and 14.0. 

5.24 Any development in the beds of public waters that will change the course, current or cross 
section is required to obtain a public waters work permit in accordance with Minnesota Statutes, 
section 103G.245 or a utility crossing license in accordance with Minnesota Statutes, section 
84.415, from the Department of Natural Resources, or demonstrate that no permit is required, 
before applying for a local permit. 

5.25 Any facility used by employees or the general public must be designed with a flood warning 
system acceptable to the Zoning Administrator that provides adequate time for evacuation, or be 
designed to ensure that within the area inundated during the base flood event, the depth (in 
feet) multiplied by the velocity (in feet per second) is less than four. 

5.26 Fill and other land alteration activities must offer minimal obstruction to the flow of flood 
waters, and be protected from erosion and sediment entering surface waters by the use of 
vegetative cover, riprap or other methods as soon as possible. 

5.3 Conditional Uses in Floodway.  The following uses and activities may be permitted as conditional uses, 
subject to the standards detailed in Sections 5.4: 

5.31 Commercial extractive uses, and storage and stockpiling yards. 

5.32 Structures accessory to uses detailed in Sections 5.11 and 5.31. 



 

 

5.4 Standards for Conditional Uses in Floodway.  In addition to the applicable standards detailed in Sections 
4.0, 5.2 and 11.2: 

5.41 Extractive uses and storage of materials require the completion of a site development and 
restoration plan, to be approved by the City of Clearwater. 

5.42 Accessory Structures.  Structures accessory to the uses detailed in Sections 5.11 and 5.31 must 
be constructed and placed so as to offer a minimal obstruction to the flow of flood waters, and 
are subject to the standards in Section 6.23 of this ordinance. 

SECTION 6.0  FLOOD FRINGE DISTRICT 

6.1 Permitted Uses in Flood Fringe.  Any uses or activities allowed in any applicable underlying zoning 
districts may be allowed with a permit, subject to the standards set forth in Sections 6.2. 

6.2 Standards for Permitted Uses in Flood Fringe.  In addition to the applicable standards detailed in Section 
4.0: 

6.21 Residential Structures. 

A. Elevation on Fill. Structures erected, constructed, reconstructed, altered, or moved on fill 
within the Flood Fringe District shall be placed so that the lowest floor, as defined in Section 
2.0 of this ordinance, is elevated at or above the Regulatory Flood Protection Elevation 
(RFPE). The finished fill elevation shall be at or above the elevation associated with the base 
flood plus any stage increases that result from designation of a floodway. Fill must extend at 
the same elevation at least 15 feet beyond the outside limits of the structure. Elevations must 
be certified by a registered professional engineer, land surveyor or other qualified person 
designated by the Zoning Administrator. Elevation methods alternative to these fill standards 
are subject to a Conditional Use Permit, as provided in Section 6.31 of this ordinance (Figure 
1). Construction of this type shall only be permitted in locations where the natural ground is 
no lower than three feet below the base flood elevation. 

Figure 1: Overview of fill standards for residential structures. 

 
6.22 Nonresidential Principal Structures. Nonresidential principal structures must meet one of the 

following construction methods: 

A. Elevation on Fill. Structures may be elevated on fill, meeting the standards in Section 6.21.A 
of this ordinance. Fill for nonresidential structures is not required to be extended 15 feet 
beyond the outside limits of the structure. 

B. Alternative Elevation Methods. Structures may be elevated using methods alternative to the 
fill standards in Section 6.21.A of this ordinance. Such methods include the use of blocks, 
pilings (Figure 2), filled stem walls (Figure 3), or internally-flooded enclosed areas (Figure 4) 
such as crawl spaces, attached garages, or tuck under garages.  



 

 

 

Figure 2: Blocks or pilings.                          Figure 3: Filled stem walls.                Figure 4: Internally flooded enclosed 
area. 

 
 

Designs accommodating for internally-flooded enclosed areas must be certified by a 
registered professional engineer or architect, or meet or exceed the standards detailed in 
FEMA Technical Bulletin 1, as amended, as well as the following standards: 

(1) The lowest floor, as defined in Section 2.0 of this ordinance, shall be elevated at or above 
the Regulatory Flood Protection Elevation (RFPE). 

(2) The floor of the enclosed area must be at or above the exterior grade on at least one side 
of the structure. 

(3) To allow for the equalization of hydrostatic pressure, there shall be a minimum of two 
openings below the base flood elevation on at least two sides of the structure. The bottom 
of all openings shall be no higher than one foot above grade. The openings shall have a 
minimum net area of not less than one square inch for every square foot of enclosed area 
subject to flooding, have a net area of not less than one square inch for every square foot 
of enclosed area subject to flooding, and shall allow automatic entry and exit of 
floodwaters without human intervention. 

(4) Internally flooded enclosed areas shall only be used for the parking of vehicles, building 
access, or storage. Bathrooms and toilet rooms shall not be allowed. Such areas shall be 
subject to a deed-restricted non-conversion agreement as well as periodic inspections 
with the issuance of any permit. 

C. Dry Floodproofing. Structures having watertight enclosed basements or spaces below the 
Regulatory Flood Protection Elevation (RFPE) must meet the following standards: 

(1) Walls must be substantially impermeable to the passage of water, with structural 
components having the capacity of resisting hydrostatic and hydrodynamic loads and 
effects of buoyancy, at least up to the Regulatory Flood Protection Elevation (RFPE); 

(2) Must meet the standards of FEMA Technical Bulletin 3, as amended; and 

(3) A registered professional engineer or architect shall be required to certify that the design 
and methods of construction meet the standards detailed in this Section. 

6.23 Accessory Structures. All accessory structures must meet the following standards: 

A. Structures shall not be designed or used for human habitation. 

B. Structures will have a low flood damage potential. 



 

 

C. Structures with fewer than two rigid walls, such as carports, gazebos, and picnic pavilions, 
may be located at an elevation below the Regulatory Flood Protection Elevation. 

D. Structures with two or more rigid walls, must meet one of the following construction 
methods: 

(1) Wet Floodproofing. Structures may be floodproofed in a way to accommodate internal 
flooding. Such structures shall constitute a minimal investment not to exceed 576 square 
feet in size, one-story in height, and shall only be used for parking and storage. To allow 
for the equalization of hydrostatic pressure, there shall be a minimum of two openings on 
at least two sides of the structure and the bottom of all openings shall be no higher than 
one foot above grade. The openings shall have a minimum net area of not less than one 
square inch for every square foot of enclosed area subject to flooding, and shall allow 
automatic entry and exit of floodwaters without human intervention. 

(2) Elevation on Fill. Structures may be elevated on fill, meeting the standards in Section 
6.21.A of this ordinance. Fill is not required to be extended 15 feet beyond the outside 
limits of the structure. 

(3) Alternative Elevation Methods. Structures may have their lowest floor elevated above the 
Regulatory Flood Protection Elevation (RFPE) through methods alternative to the fill 
standards in Section 6.23.D(2), and must meet the standards in Section 6.22.B of this 
ordinance. 

(4) Dry Floodproofing. Structures may be dry-floodproofed, or watertight, meeting the 
standards in Section 6.22.C of this ordinance. 

6.24 All new principal structures must provide vehicular access no lower than one foot below the Base 
Flood Elevation (BFE), unless a flood warning/emergency evacuation plan has been approved by 
the City of Clearwater. 

6.25 Any facilities used by employees or the general public must be designed with a flood warning 
system acceptable to the City of Clearwater that provides adequate time for evacuation, or be 
designed to ensure that within the area inundated during the base flood event, the depth (in 
feet) multiplied by the velocity (in feet per second) is less than four. 

6.26 Manufactured homes and recreational vehicles must meet the standards of Section 10 of this 
ordinance. 

6.3 Conditional Uses in Flood Fringe.  The following uses and activities may be permitted as conditional 
uses, subject to the standards in Sections 6.4: 

6.31 Alternative Elevation Methods – Residential Structures. Residential structures with their lowest 
floor elevated above the Regulatory Flood Protection Elevation (RFPE) using methods alternative 
to the fill requirements in Section 6.21. 

6.4 Standards for Conditional Uses in Flood Fringe.  In addition to the applicable standards detailed in 
Sections 4.0, 6.2 and 11.2: 

6.41 All residential structures with lowest floors elevated through alternative elevation methods must 
meet the standards in Section 6.22.B of this ordinance. 

SECTION 7.0  RESERVED FOR GENERAL FLOODPLAIN DISTRICT 

SECTION 8.0  SUBDIVISION STANDARDS 



 

 

8.1 Subdivisions.  All subdivided land must meet the following requirements. Manufactured home parks and 
recreational vehicle parks or campgrounds are considered subdivisions under this ordinance. 

8.11 All lots within floodplain districts must be suitable for a building site outside of the Floodway 
District. 

8.12 Subdivision of lands within the floodplain districts may not be approved if the cost of providing 
governmental services would impose an unreasonable economic burden on the City of 
Clearwater. 

8.13 All subdivisions must have vehicular access both to the subdivision and to the individual building 
sites no lower than two feet below the Regulatory Flood Protection Elevation (RFPE), unless a 
flood warning/emergency evacuation plan has been approved by the City of Clearwater. 

8.14 The Floodway and Flood Fringe District boundaries, the Regulatory Flood Protection Elevation 
(RFPE) and the required elevation of all access roads must be clearly identified on all required 
subdivision drawings and platting documents. 

SECTION 9.0  PUBLIC AND PRIVATE UTILITIES, SERVICE FACILITES, ROADS, BRIDGES, AND RAILROADS  

9.1 Public Transportation Facilities.  Railroad tracks, roads, and bridges must be elevated to the Regulatory 
Flood Protection Elevation (RFPE) where such facilities are essential to the orderly functioning of the 
area, or where failure or interruption would result in danger to public health or safety. Minor or auxiliary 
roads or railroads may be constructed at a lower elevation where failure or interruption of 
transportation services would not endanger the public health or safety. All public transportation facilities 
should be designed to minimize increases in flood elevations. 

9.2 Public Utilities.  All utilities such as gas, electrical, sewer, and water supply systems to be located in the 
floodplain must be elevated and/or floodproofed to the Regulatory Flood Protection Elevation (RFPE), be 
located and constructed to minimize or eliminate flood damage, and be designed to eliminate infiltration 
of flood waters into the systems and discharges from the systems into flood waters. All public utilities 
should be designed to minimize increases in flood elevations. New solid waste management facilities, as 
defined in Minnesota Rules, part 7035.0300, are prohibited in the one-percent annual chance floodplain. 
Water supply systems are subject to the provisions in Minnesota Rules, part 4725.4350. 

9.3 Private On-Site Water Supply, Individual Sewage Treatment Systems, and other Service Facilities.  
Private facilities shall be subject to applicable provisions detailed in Section 9.2. In addition, new or 
replacement on-site sewage treatment systems are to be located to avoid impairment to them or 
contamination from them during times of flooding, shall not be located in a designated floodway, and 
are subject to the provisions in Minnesota Rules, parts 7080.2270. 

SECTION 10.0  MANUFACTURED HOMES AND RECREATIONAL VEHICLES 

10.1 Manufactured Homes.  Manufactured homes and manufactured home parks are subject to applicable 
standards for each floodplain district. In addition: 

10.11 New and replacement manufactured homes must be placed and elevated in compliance with 
Section 6.0 of this ordinance and must be securely anchored to a system that resists flotation, 
collapse and lateral movement. Methods of anchoring may include, but are not limited to, use of 
over-the-top or frame ties to ground anchors. 

10.12 New manufactured home parks and expansions to existing manufactured home parks must meet 
the appropriate standards for subdivisions in Section 8.0 of this ordinance. 



 

 

10.2 Recreational Vehicles.  New recreational vehicle parks or campgrounds and expansions to existing 
recreational vehicle parks or campgrounds are prohibited in any floodplain district. Recreational vehicles 
placed in existing recreational vehicle parks, campgrounds or lots of record in the floodplain must either: 

10.21 Meet the requirements for manufactured homes in Section 10.1, or 

10.22 Be travel ready, meeting the following criteria:  

A. The vehicle must be fully licensed. 

B. The vehicle must be ready for highway use, meaning on wheels or the internal jacking system, 
attached to the site only by quick disconnect type utilities. 

C. No permanent structural type additions may be attached to the vehicle. 

D. Accessory structures may be permitted in the Flood Fringe District, provided they do not 
hinder the removal of the vehicle should flooding occur, and meet the standards outlined in 
Sections 4.0 and 6.23. 

SECTION 11.0  ADMINISTRATION 

11.1 Duties.  A Zoning Administrator or other official must administer and enforce this ordinance. 

11.11 Permit Application Requirements.  Permit applications must be submitted to the Zoning 
Administrator. The permit application must include the following, as applicable: 

A. A site plan showing all existing or proposed buildings, structures, service facilities, potential 
obstructions, and pertinent design features having an influence on the permit. 

B. Location and detail of grading, fill, or storage of materials. 

C. Copies of any required local, state or federal permits or approvals. 

D. Other relevant information requested by the Zoning Administrator as necessary to properly 
evaluate the permit application. 

11.12 Recordkeeping.  The Zoning Administrator must maintain applicable records in perpetuity 
documenting: 

A. All certifications for dry floodproofing and alternative elevation methods, where applicable. 

B. Analysis of no-rise in the Floodway District, as detailed in Section 5.21, and encroachment 
analysis ensuring no more than one-half foot of rise in the General Floodplain District, as 
detailed in Sections 7.22 and 7.31. 

C. Final elevations, as applicable, detailing the elevation to which structures and improvements 
to structures are constructed or floodproofed. Elevations shall be determined by an engineer, 
architect, surveyor or other qualified individual, as approved by the Zoning Administrator. 

D. Substantial damage and substantial improvement determinations, as detailed in Section 
12.13, including the cost of improvements, repairs, and market value. 

E. All variance actions, including justification for their issuance, and must report such variances 
as requested by the Federal Emergency Management Agency. 

11.13 Certificate of Zoning Compliance for a New, Altered, or Nonconforming Use.  No building, land or 
structure may be occupied or used in any manner until a certificate of zoning compliance has 
been issued by the Zoning Administrator stating that the finished fill and building floor elevations 
or other flood protection measures are in compliance with the requirements of this ordinance. 



 

 

11.14 Notifications for Watercourse Alterations.  Before authorizing any alteration or relocation of a 
river or stream, the Zoning Administrator must notify adjacent communities. If the applicant has 
applied for a permit to work in public waters in accordance with Minnesota Statutes, Section 
103G.245, this will suffice as adequate notice. A copy of the notification must also be submitted 
to FEMA. 

11.15 Notification to FEMA When Physical Changes Increase or Decrease Base Flood Elevations.  Where 
physical changes affecting flooding conditions may increase or decrease the water surface 
elevation of the base flood, the City of Clearwater must notify FEMA of the changes in order to 
obtain a Letter of Map Revision (LOMR), by submitting a copy of the relevant technical or 
scientific data as soon as practicable, but no later than six months after the date such supporting 
information becomes available. Within the General Floodplain District, a map revision is only 
required if development results in stage increases greater than 0.5 feet. 

11.2 Conditional Uses and Variances 

11.21 Process. 

A. An application for a conditional use permit will be processed and reviewed in accordance with 
the provisions of this ordinance. 

B. An application for a variance to the provisions of this ordinance will be processed and 
reviewed in accordance with Minnesota Statutes, section 462.357, Subd. 6(2) and this 
ordinance. 

11.22 Additional Variance Criteria.  The following additional variance criteria must be satisfied: 

A. Variances must not be issued within any designated regulatory floodway if any increase in 
flood levels during the base flood discharge would result. 

B. Variances from the provisions of this ordinance may only be issued by a community upon: 

(1) A showing of good and sufficient cause; 

(2) A determination that failure to grant the variance would result in exceptional hardship to 
the applicant; and  

(3) A determination that the granting of a variance will not result in increased flood heights, 
additional threats to public safety, extraordinary public expense, create nuisances, cause 
fraud on or victimization of the public, or conflict with existing local laws or ordinances. 

C. Variances from the provisions in this ordinance may only be issued upon a determination that 
the variance is the minimum necessary, considering the flood hazard, to afford relief. 

D. Variances must be consistent with the general purpose of these standards and the intent of 
applicable provisions in state and federal law. 

E. Variances may be used to modify permissible methods of flood protection, but no variance 
shall permit a lesser degree of flood protection than the Regulatory Flood Protection 
Elevation (RFPE). 

F. The Zoning Administrator must notify the applicant for a variance in writing that:  

(1) The issuance of a variance to construct a structure below the base flood level will result in 
increased premium rates for flood insurance up to amounts as high as $25 for $100 of 
insurance coverage; and  



 

 

(2) Such construction below the base flood level increases risks to life and property. 
Notification must be maintained with a record of all variance actions. 

11.23 Considerations for Approval.  The City of Clearwater must consider all relevant factors specified 
in other sections of this ordinance in granting variances and conditional use permits, including 
the following: 

A. The potential danger to life and property due to increased flood heights or velocities caused 
by encroachments. 

B. The danger that materials may be swept onto other lands or downstream to the injury of 
others. 

C. The safety of access to the property in times of flood for ordinary and emergency vehicles. 

11.24 Conditions of Approval. The City of Clearwater may attach such conditions to the granting of 
variances and conditional use permits as it deems necessary to fulfill the purposes of this 
ordinance. Such conditions may include, but are not limited to, the following: 

A. Limitations on period of use, occupancy, and operation. 

B. Imposition of operational controls, sureties, and deed restrictions. 

C. The prevention of soil erosion or other possible pollution of public waters, both during and 
after construction. 

D. Other conditions as deemed appropriate by the Zoning Administrator and City Council. 

11.3 Notifications to the Department of Natural Resources 

11.31 All notices of public hearings to consider variances or conditional uses under this ordinance must 
be sent via electronic mail to the Department of Natural Resources respective area hydrologist at 
least ten (10) days before the hearings. Notices of hearings to consider subdivisions/plats must 
include copies of the subdivision/plat. 

11.32 A copy of all decisions granting variances and conditional uses under this ordinance must be sent 
via electronic mail to the Department of Natural Resources respective area hydrologist within ten 
(10) days of final action. 

SECTION 12.0  NONCONFORMITIES 

12.1 Continuance of Nonconformities. A use, structure, or occupancy of land which was lawful before the 
passage or amendment of this ordinance, but which is not in conformity with the provisions of this 
ordinance, may be continued subject to the following conditions: 

12.11 Within the floodway and general floodplain districts (when a site has been determined to be 
located in the floodway following the procedures in Section 7.3, or when the floodway has not 
been delineated), any expansion or enlargement of uses or structures is prohibited. 

12.12 Within all districts, any addition, modification, rehabilitation, repair, or alteration shall be in 
conformance with the provisions of this ordinance, shall not increase the flood damage potential 
or increase the degree of obstruction to flood flows, and where applicable, must be protected to 
the Regulatory Flood Protection Elevation (RFPE). 

12.13 If any nonconforming structure is determined to be substantially damaged or substantially 
improved based on the procedures in Section 12.2, it may not be reconstructed except in 
conformity with the provisions of this ordinance. 



 

 

12.14 If any nonconforming use, or any use of a nonconforming structure, is discontinued for more 
than one year, any future use of the premises must conform to this ordinance. 

12.15 If any nonconforming structure has utilities, electrical, or mechanical equipment damaged due to 
flooding, it must be rebuilt in conformance with the elevation requirements in Section 4.31.D to 
the greatest extent practicable. This requirement shall apply regardless of the determinations 
made in Section 12.2. 

12.2 Substantial Improvement and Substantial Damage Determinations. Prior to issuing any permits for 
additions, modifications, rehabilitations, repairs, alterations, or maintenance to nonconforming 
structures, the Zoning Administrator is required to determine if such work constitutes substantial 
improvement or repair of a substantially damaged structure. A determination must be made in 
accordance with the following procedures: 

12.21 Estimate the market value of the structure. In the case of repairs, the market value of the 
structure shall be the market value before the damage occurred and before any restoration or 
repairs are made. 

12.22 Estimate the cost of the project. The property owner shall accommodate for inspection, and 
furnish other documentation needed by the zoning administrator to evaluate costs. 

A. Improvement costs shall be comprised of the market rate of all materials and labor, as well as 
the costs of all ordinary maintenance and upkeep carried out over the past one year. 

B. Costs to repair damages shall be comprised of the market rate of all materials and labor 
required to restore a building to its pre-damaged condition regardless of the work proposed, 
as well as associated improvement costs if structure is being restored beyond its pre-
damaged condition. 

12.23 Compare the cost of the improvement, repairs, or combination thereof to the estimated market 
value of the structure, and determine whether the proposed work constitutes substantial 
improvement or repair of a substantially damaged structure, as defined in Section 2.0 of this 
ordinance. 

A. For the purposes of determining whether the proposed work would constitute substantial 
improvement, the evaluation shall also include all rehabilitations, additions, or other 
improvements completed since the community has adopted floodplain standards impacting 
this structure. 

B. If any nonconforming structure experiences a repetitive loss, as defined in Section 2.0 of this 
ordinance, it shall be considered substantially damaged and must not be reconstructed 
except in conformity with the provisions of this ordinance. 

12.24 Based on this determination, the zoning administrator shall prepare a determination letter and 
notify the property owner accordingly. Structures determined to be substantially damaged or 
substantially improved may not be reconstructed except in conformity with the provisions of this 
ordinance. 

SECTION 13.0  VIOLATIONS AND PENALTIES 

13.1 Uses in Violation of the Ordinance.  Every structure, fill, deposit, or other use placed or maintained in 
the floodplain in violation of this ordinance shall be considered a public nuisance. 

13.2 Civil Remedies. The creation of a public nuisance may be enjoined and the maintenance of a public 
nuisance under this ordinance may be abated by an action brought by the City of Clearwater or the 
Department of Natural Resources. 



 

 

13.3 Enforcement.  Violations of the provisions of this ordinance constitutes a misdemeanor and is 
punishable as defined by law. The Zoning Administrator may utilize the full array of enforcement actions 
available to it including but not limited to prosecution and fines, injunctions, after-the-fact permits, 
orders for corrective measures or a request to the National Flood Insurance Program for denial of flood 
insurance. The City of Clearwater must act in good faith to enforce these official controls and to correct 
ordinance violations to the extent possible so as not to jeopardize its eligibility in the National Flood 
Insurance Program. 

SECTION 14.0  AMENDMENTS 

14.1 Ordinance Amendments.  Any revisions to the floodplain maps by the Federal Emergency Management 
Agency or annexations of new map panels require an ordinance amendment to update the map 
references in Section 3.2 of this ordinance. 

14.2 Required Approval.  All amendments to this ordinance must be submitted to the Department of Natural 
Resources for review and approval prior to adoption, for compliance with state and federal rules and 
requirements. The floodplain ordinance shall not be considered valid until approved. 

 

EFFECTIVE DATE:  This ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage and approval.  

Adopted by the Clearwater City Council 

 This _____ of _______, _____ 

  (Day) (Month) (Year) 

Attest:  _________________________ , Mayor 

 (Name of Elected Official) 

Attest:  __________________________, City Clerk 

 



PLANNING COMMISSION 
CITY OF CLEARWATER 

 
RESOLUTION NO. PZ24-02 

 
RESOLUTION OF FINDINGS FOR PROPOSED PURCHASE OF 17505 HUBER AVE 

(PID 104-044-001030) 
 

 
WHEREAS, at the direction of the City Council, staff have pursued an agreement to 
purchase a parcel located at 17505 Huber Ave (PID 104-044-001030); and 
 
WHEREAS, Minnesota Statutes, section 462.356, subd. 2 requires the Planning 
Commission to consider the proposed acquisition and determine whether it complies with 
the city’s Comprehensive Plan; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council desires to acquire the property for city facilities and public 
amenities; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Comprehensive Plan Chapter IV, governing Land Use and Housing, 
includes the following goals: 
 

GOALS AND ASPIRATIONS 
1. Clearwater retains and improves its small town character and sense of 

place. 
2. Clearwater has a well-balanced, diversified tax base. 
3. Clearwater offers choices in housing location, types, and levels of 

affordability. 
4. Clearwater re-coups its investment in infrastructure. 
5. Clearwater provides good paying jobs. 
6. Clearwater offers a variety of park and recreational opportunities, 

including trails that connect people from where they live to where they 
want to go. 

7. Clearwater plans for ample growth in an orderly and systematic fashion. 
8. Clearwater develops, while at the same time preserving its valuable 

natural resources, especially the Mississippi River. 
 
WHEREAS, the Comprehensive Plan Chapter V, governing Economic Development, 
includes the following goals: 
 

GOALS AND ASPIRATIONS 
1. Clearwater grows its residential base in all housing categories to provide 

a greater employee base for potential new industrial businesses. 
2. Clearwater provides jobs by maximizing its geographic location as an I-

94 corridor community with a regional river crossing and major highway 
access to leverage development in commercial and industrial business 
sectors. 



3. Clearwater provides new business opportunities by maximizing its 
riverfront location actively developing the Old Town riverfront into a 
mixed use neighborhood with businesses aimed at residents and 
visitors. 

4. Clearwater invests in parks, open spaces, and community facilities that 
realize the best overall economic development impact. 

 
WHEREAS, the Planning Commission has reviewed the proposed acquisition and has 
made the following findings: 
 

1. Planning Commission Finding:  
 The proposed acquisition addresses goal #7 from Chapter IV Land Use 

and Housing of the Comprehensive Plan. One of the proposed uses for 
the parcel is a new fire hall. Expanding and providing new facilities for 
essential emergency response services aids in supporting the city’s 
growth by investing in infrastructure, improving access, and enhancing the 
safety of the community.  

 
2. Planning Commission Finding:  
 The proposed acquisition addresses goal #1 from Chapter V Economic 

Development. The proposed addition of a childcare facility at this property 
will aid in the city’s growth by providing current and potential residents with 
access to quality care, in turn supporting working parents and promoting 
economic development. This addition would address a lack of childcare 
within the community. The addition of childcare services aids in presenting 
the City of Clearwater as an appealing place to live and work. 

 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CLEARWATER PLANNING 
COMMISSION THAT; the Planning Commission does hereby find that the proposed 
acquisition is consistent with the goals outlined in Chapter IV Land Use and Housing 
and Chapter V Economic Development in the city’s Comprehensive Plan. 
 

 
DATED THIS 15th DAY OF APRIL 2024 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_______________________________       _______________________________ 
Stephanie Trottier      William “Bud” Schindele 
Community Development Specialist   Planning Commission Chair  
 




	Clearwater Foodshelf Civil Plans 1.31.2024.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Cover
	V1 Existing Conditions
	C1 Demolition Plan
	C2 Site Plan
	C3 Grading Plan
	C4 Utility Plan
	C5 SWPPP Narrative
	C6 Erosion Control Plan
	C7 Details
	C8 Details


	Ord 2024-04 - Replacing Clearwater Flood Plain Ordinance - Posted Version.pdf
	SECTION 1.0  STATUTORY AUTHORIZATION AND PURPOSE
	1.1 Statutory Authorization.  This floodplain ordinance is adopted pursuant to the authorization and policies contained in Minnesota Statutes, Chapter 103F; Minnesota Rules, parts 6120.5000 – 6120.6200; the rules and regulations of the National Flood ...
	1.2   Purpose
	1.21 This ordinance regulates development in the flood hazard areas of the City of Clearwater. These flood hazard areas are subject to periodic inundation, which may result in loss of life and property, health and safety hazards, disruption of commerc...
	1.22 This ordinance is adopted in the public interest to promote sound land use practices, and floodplains are a land resource to be developed in a manner which will result in minimum loss of life and threat to health, and reduction of private and pub...
	1.23 This ordinance is adopted to maintain eligibility in the National Flood Insurance Program.
	1.24 This ordinance is also intended to preserve the natural characteristics and functions of watercourses and floodplains in order to moderate flood and stormwater impacts, improve water quality, reduce soil erosion, protect aquatic and riparian habi...

	1.3 Abrogation and Greater Restrictions.  It is not intended by this ordinance to repeal, abrogate, or impair any existing easements, covenants, or other private agreements. The standards in this ordinance take precedence over any less restrictive, co...
	1.4 Warning and Disclaimer of Liability.  This ordinance does not imply that areas outside the floodplain districts or land uses permitted within such districts will be free from flooding or flood damages. Not all flood risk is mapped. Larger floods d...
	1.5 Severability.  If any section, clause, provision, or portion of this ordinance is adjudged unconstitutional or invalid by a court of law, the remainder of this ordinance shall not be affected and shall remain in full force.

	SECTION 2.0  DEFINITIONS
	2.1 Definitions.  Unless specifically defined, words or phrases used in this ordinance must be interpreted according to common usage and so as to give this ordinance its most reasonable application.
	2.111 Accessory Structure.  A structure, as defined in this ordinance, that is on the same parcel of property as, and is incidental to, the principal structure or use; an accessory structure specifically excludes structures used for human habitation.
	2.112 Base Flood.  The flood having a one-percent chance of being equaled or exceeded in any given year. “Base flood” is synonymous with the term “regional flood” used in Minnesota Rules, part 6120.5000.
	2.113 Base Flood Elevation (BFE).  The elevation of the base flood, regional flood, or one-percent annual chance flood. The term “base flood elevation” is used in the flood insurance study.
	2.114 Basement.  Any area of a structure, including crawl spaces, having its floor subgrade (below ground level) on all four sides, regardless of the depth of excavation below ground level.
	2.115 Building.  See Structure.
	2.116 Channel.  A natural or artificial depression of perceptible extent, with definite bed and banks to confine and conduct flowing water either continuously or periodically.
	2.117 Conditional Use.  A land use or development that would not be appropriate generally, but may be allowed with appropriate restrictions upon a finding that certain conditions as detailed in the zoning ordinance exist, the use or development confor...
	2.118 Critical Facilities.  Buildings and structures that contain essential facilities and services necessary for emergency response and recovery, or that pose a substantial risk to the public in the event of failure, disruption of function, or damage...
	2.119 Development.  Any man-made change to improved or unimproved real estate, including, but not limited to buildings or other structures, mining, dredging, filling, grading, paving, excavation or drilling operations, or storage of equipment or mater...
	2.120 Equal Degree of Encroachment.  A method of determining the location of floodway boundaries so that floodplain lands on both sides of a stream are capable of conveying a proportionate share of flood flows.
	2.121 FEMA.  Federal Emergency Management Agency.
	2.122 Farm Fence.  An open type of fence of posts and horizontally run wire, further specified in Minnesota Statutes, section 344.02, Subd. 1(a-d).
	2.123 Flood.  A temporary rise in the stream flow or water surface elevation from any source that results in the inundation of normally dry land areas.
	2.124 Flood Fringe.  The portion of the one-percent annual chance floodplain located outside of the floodway.
	2.125 Flood Insurance Rate Map (FIRM).  An official map on which the Federal Insurance Administrator has delineated both the special flood hazard areas and the risk premium zones applicable to the community. A FIRM that has been made available digital...
	2.126 Flood Insurance Study (FIS).  The study referenced in Section 3.2, which is an examination, evaluation and determination of flood hazards, and if appropriate, corresponding surface elevations, or an examination, evaluation, and determination of ...
	2.127 Floodplain.  The beds, channel and the areas adjoining a wetland, lake or watercourse, or other source which have been or hereafter may be inundated by the base flood.
	2.128 Floodproofing.  A combination of structural and non-structural additions, changes, or adjustments to properties and structures subject to flooding, primarily for the reduction or elimination of flood damages.
	2.129 Floodway.  The bed of a wetland or lake and the channel of a watercourse and those portions of the adjoining floodplain which must be reserved to carry or store the base flood discharge without cumulatively increasing the water surface elevation...
	2.130 General Floodplain. Those floodplains designated on the Flood Insurance Rate Maps referenced in Section 3.2, but that do not have a delineated floodway.
	2.131 Light Duty Truck. Any motor vehicle that has all three of the following:
	A. 8,500 pounds Gross Vehicle Weight Rating or less;
	B. vehicle curb weight of 6,000 pounds or less; and
	C. basic vehicle frontal area less than 45 square feet.

	2.132 Lowest Floor.  The lowest floor of the lowest enclosed area (including basement).  An unfinished or flood resistant enclosure, used solely for parking of vehicles, building access, or storage in an area other than a basement area, is not conside...
	2.133 Manufactured Home.  A structure, transportable in one or more sections, which is built on a permanent chassis and is designed for use with or without a permanent foundation when attached to the required utilities.  The term “manufactured home” d...
	2.134 New Construction.  Structures for which the start of construction commenced on or after the effective date of an adopted floodplain management regulation, and includes any subsequent improvements to such structures.
	2.135 Principal Structure.  The main building or other structure on a lot that is utilized for the property’s principal use.
	2.136 Reach.  A hydraulic engineering term to describe a longitudinal segment of a stream or river influenced by a natural or man-made obstruction. In an urban area, the segment of a stream or river between two consecutive bridge crossings would most ...
	2.137 Recreational Vehicle.  A vehicle that is built on a single chassis, is 400 square feet or less when measured at the largest horizontal projection, is designed to be self-propelled or permanently towable by a light duty truck, and is designed pri...
	2.138 Regulatory Flood Protection Elevation (RFPE).  An elevation that is one foot above the elevation of the base flood plus any increases in the water surface elevation caused by encroachments on the floodplain that result from designation of a floo...
	2.139 Repetitive Loss.  Flood related damages sustained by a structure on two separate occasions during a ten year period for which the cost of repairs at the time of each such flood event on the average equals or exceeds 25% of the market value of th...
	2.140 Stage Increase. Any increase in the water surface elevation during the one-percent annual chance flood caused by encroachments on the floodplain.
	2.141 Start of Construction. Includes substantial improvement, and means the date the permit was issued, provided the actual start of construction, repair, reconstruction, rehabilitation, addition placement, or other improvement was within 180 days of...
	2.142 Structure.  A roofed building, including a gas or liquid storage tank, that is principally above ground, as well as a manufactured home. Recreational vehicles not considered travel ready, as detailed in Section 10.22, shall also be considered a ...
	2.143 Subdivision.  Land that has been divided for the purpose of sale, rent, or lease, including planned unit developments.
	2.144 Substantial Damage.  Damage of any origin sustained by a structure where the cost of restoring the structure to its before damaged condition would equal or exceed 50 percent of the market value of the structure before the damage occurred.
	2.145 Substantial Improvement.  Any reconstruction, rehabilitation, addition, or other improvement of a structure, the cost of which equals or exceeds 50 percent of the market value of the structure before the “start of construction” of the improvemen...
	A. Any project for improvement of a structure to correct existing violations of state or local health, sanitary, or safety code specifications which have been identified by the local code enforcement official and which are the minimum necessary to ass...
	B. Any alteration of a “historic structure,” provided that the alteration will not preclude the structure’s continued designation as a “historic structure.”  For the purpose of this ordinance, “historic structure” is defined in 44 CFR § 59.1.

	2.146 Variance.  “Variance” means the same as that defined in 44 CFR § 59.1 and Minnesota Statutes, Section 462.357, Subd. 6(2).
	2.147 Watercourse.  A channel in which a flow of water occurs either continuously or intermittently in a definitive direction. The term applies to either natural or artificially constructed channels.


	SECTION 3.0  JURISDICTION AND DISTRICTS
	3.1 Lands to Which Ordinance Applies.  This ordinance applies to all lands within the jurisdiction of the City of Clearwater within the boundaries of the Floodway, Flood Fringe and General Floodplain Districts.
	3.11 The Floodway, Flood Fringe or General Floodplain Districts are overlay districts. The standards imposed in the overlay districts are in addition to any other requirements. In case of a conflict, the more restrictive standards will apply.
	3.12 Where a conflict exists between the floodplain limits illustrated on the official floodplain maps and actual field conditions, the Base Flood Elevation (BFE) shall be the governing factor in locating the outer boundaries of the one-percent annual...
	3.13 Persons contesting the location of the district boundaries will be given a reasonable opportunity to present their case to the Planning Commission and to submit technical evidence.

	3.2 Incorporation of Maps by Reference.  The following maps together with all attached material are hereby adopted by reference and declared to be a part of the official zoning map and this ordinance.
	 Flood Insurance Studies
	These materials are on file at City Hall.
	3.3 Districts
	3.31 Floodway District.  Those areas within Zones AE delineated within floodway areas as shown on the Flood Insurance Rate Maps referenced in Section 3.2.
	3.32 Flood Fringe District.  Those areas within Zones AE located outside of the delineated floodway, as shown on the Flood Insurance Rate Maps referenced in Section 3.2.
	3.33 Reserved for General Floodplain District.

	3.4 Annexations.  The Flood Insurance Rate Map panels referenced in Section 3.2 may include floodplain areas that lie outside of the corporate boundaries of the City of Clearwater at the time of adoption of this ordinance.  If any of these floodplain ...

	SECTION 4.0  REQUIREMENTS FOR ALL FLOODPLAIN DISTRICTS
	4.1 Permit Required.  A permit must be obtained from the Zoning Administrator to verify compliance with all applicable standards outlined in this ordinance prior to the following uses or activities:
	4.11 The erection, addition, modification, rehabilitation, repair, or alteration of any building, structure, or portion thereof.  Normal maintenance requires a permit to determine if such work, either separately or in conjunction with other planned wo...
	4.12 The construction of a fence, pool, deck, or placement of anything that may cause a potential obstruction. Farm fences, as defined in Section 2.0 of this ordinance, are not considered to be an obstruction, and as such, do not require a permit.
	4.13 The change or expansion of a nonconforming use.
	4.14 The repair of a structure that has been damaged by flood, fire, tornado, or any other source.
	4.15 The placement of fill, excavation, utilities, on-site sewage treatment systems, or other service facilities.
	4.16 The storage of materials or equipment, in conformance with Section 4.32.
	4.17 Relocation or alteration of a watercourse (including stabilization projects or the construction of new or replacement dams, culverts and bridges). A local permit is not required if a public waters work permit has been obtained from the Department...
	4.18 Any other type of “development,” as defined in Section 2.0 of this ordinance.

	4.2 No Permit Required.  Certain uses or activities may be exempt from obtaining a permit, such as planting a garden, farming, or other obviously insignificant activities such as putting up a mailbox or flagpole. The continuation of existing uses, whe...
	4.3 Minimum Development Standards
	4.31 All development must:
	A. Be designed (or modified) and adequately anchored to prevent flotation, collapse, or lateral movement resulting from hydrodynamic and hydrostatic loads, including the effects of buoyancy;
	B. Be constructed with materials and equipment resistant to flood damage;
	C. Be constructed by methods and practices that minimize flood damage;
	D. Be constructed with heating, ventilation, duct work, and air conditioning equipment and other service facilities elevated at least up to the Regulatory Flood Protection Elevation (RFPE). Water, sewage, electrical, and other utility lines below the ...
	E. Be reasonably safe from flooding and consistent with the need to minimize flood damage;
	F. Be assured to provide adequate drainage to reduce exposure to flood hazards;
	G. Not be detrimental to uses in adjoining areas; and
	H. Not adversely affect the efficiency or restrict the flood carrying capacity of the channel and adjoining floodplain of any tributary watercourse or drainage system.
	I. Ensure that any fill or other materials are protected from erosion, discharge, and sediment entering surface waters by the ese of vegetative cover or other methods as soon as possible.

	4.32 Materials that, in time of flooding, are buoyant, flammable, explosive, or could be injurious to human, animal, or plant life shall be stored at or above the Regulatory Flood Protection Elevation (RFPE), floodproofed, or protected by other measur...
	4.33 Critical facilities shall be located so that the lowest floor is not less than two feet above the Base Flood Elevation (BFE), or the 0.2% annual chance flood elevation, whichever is higher.
	Table 1. Summary of Permitting Requirements for Structures


	SECTION 5.0  FLOODWAY DISTRICT
	5.1 Permitted Uses in Floodway.  Development allowed in the floodway district is limited to that which has low flood damage potential and will not obstruct flood flows, increase velocities, or increase the water surface elevations of the one-percent a...
	5.11 Agricultural uses, recreational uses, parking lots, loading areas, airport landing strips, water control structures, navigational facilities, as well as public open space uses.
	5.12 Roads, driveways, railroads, trails, bridges, and culverts.
	5.13 Public utility facilities and water-oriented industries which must be in or adjacent to watercourses.
	5.14 Grading, filling, land alterations, and shoreline stabilization projects.
	5.15 No structures, as defined in Section 2.0, are allowed in the Floodway District, except structures accessory to the uses detailed in Sections 5.11 and 5.31, which require a CUP under Section 5.32.
	5.16 Levees or dikes intended to protect agricultural crops, provided the top of the dike does not exceed the 10-percent annual chance flood event.

	5.2 Standards for Permitted Uses in Floodway. In addition to the applicable standards detailed in Section 4.0:
	5.21 The applicant must demonstrate that the development will not result in any of the following during the one-percent annual chance flood: cause a stage increase of 0.00 feet or greater, obstruct flood flows, or increase velocities. This shall be de...
	5.22 Any development that would result in a stage increases greater than 0.00 feet may only be allowed with a permit if the applicant has applied for and received approval for a Conditional Letter of Map Revision (CLOMR) in accordance with 44 CFR § 65...
	5.23 Any development resulting in decreases to the water surface elevation of the base flood identified in the Flood Insurance Study requires a Letter of Map Revision (LOMR) following the procedures in Sections 11.15 and 14.0.
	5.24 Any development in the beds of public waters that will change the course, current or cross section is required to obtain a public waters work permit in accordance with Minnesota Statutes, section 103G.245 or a utility crossing license in accordan...
	5.25 Any facility used by employees or the general public must be designed with a flood warning system acceptable to the Zoning Administrator that provides adequate time for evacuation, or be designed to ensure that within the area inundated during th...
	5.26 Fill and other land alteration activities must offer minimal obstruction to the flow of flood waters, and be protected from erosion and sediment entering surface waters by the use of vegetative cover, riprap or other methods as soon as possible.

	5.3 Conditional Uses in Floodway.  The following uses and activities may be permitted as conditional uses, subject to the standards detailed in Sections 5.4:
	5.31 Commercial extractive uses, and storage and stockpiling yards.
	5.32 Structures accessory to uses detailed in Sections 5.11 and 5.31.

	5.4 Standards for Conditional Uses in Floodway.  In addition to the applicable standards detailed in Sections 4.0, 5.2 and 11.2:
	5.41 Extractive uses and storage of materials require the completion of a site development and restoration plan, to be approved by the City of Clearwater.
	5.42 Accessory Structures.  Structures accessory to the uses detailed in Sections 5.11 and 5.31 must be constructed and placed so as to offer a minimal obstruction to the flow of flood waters, and are subject to the standards in Section 6.23 of this o...


	SECTION 6.0  FLOOD FRINGE DISTRICT
	6.1 Permitted Uses in Flood Fringe.  Any uses or activities allowed in any applicable underlying zoning districts may be allowed with a permit, subject to the standards set forth in Sections 6.2.
	6.2 Standards for Permitted Uses in Flood Fringe.  In addition to the applicable standards detailed in Section 4.0:
	6.21 Residential Structures.
	A. Elevation on Fill. Structures erected, constructed, reconstructed, altered, or moved on fill within the Flood Fringe District shall be placed so that the lowest floor, as defined in Section 2.0 of this ordinance, is elevated at or above the Regulat...

	6.22 Nonresidential Principal Structures. Nonresidential principal structures must meet one of the following construction methods:
	A. Elevation on Fill. Structures may be elevated on fill, meeting the standards in Section 6.21.A of this ordinance. Fill for nonresidential structures is not required to be extended 15 feet beyond the outside limits of the structure.
	B. Alternative Elevation Methods. Structures may be elevated using methods alternative to the fill standards in Section 6.21.A of this ordinance. Such methods include the use of blocks, pilings (Figure 2), filled stem walls (Figure 3), or internally-f...
	Figure 2: Blocks or pilings.                          Figure 3: Filled stem walls.                Figure 4: Internally flooded enclosed area.
	Designs accommodating for internally-flooded enclosed areas must be certified by a registered professional engineer or architect, or meet or exceed the standards detailed in FEMA Technical Bulletin 1, as amended, as well as the following standards:
	(1) The lowest floor, as defined in Section 2.0 of this ordinance, shall be elevated at or above the Regulatory Flood Protection Elevation (RFPE).
	(2) The floor of the enclosed area must be at or above the exterior grade on at least one side of the structure.
	(3) To allow for the equalization of hydrostatic pressure, there shall be a minimum of two openings below the base flood elevation on at least two sides of the structure. The bottom of all openings shall be no higher than one foot above grade. The ope...
	(4) Internally flooded enclosed areas shall only be used for the parking of vehicles, building access, or storage. Bathrooms and toilet rooms shall not be allowed. Such areas shall be subject to a deed-restricted non-conversion agreement as well as pe...

	C. Dry Floodproofing. Structures having watertight enclosed basements or spaces below the Regulatory Flood Protection Elevation (RFPE) must meet the following standards:
	(1) Walls must be substantially impermeable to the passage of water, with structural components having the capacity of resisting hydrostatic and hydrodynamic loads and effects of buoyancy, at least up to the Regulatory Flood Protection Elevation (RFPE);
	(2) Must meet the standards of FEMA Technical Bulletin 3, as amended; and
	(3) A registered professional engineer or architect shall be required to certify that the design and methods of construction meet the standards detailed in this Section.


	6.23 Accessory Structures. All accessory structures must meet the following standards:
	A. Structures shall not be designed or used for human habitation.
	B. Structures will have a low flood damage potential.
	C. Structures with fewer than two rigid walls, such as carports, gazebos, and picnic pavilions, may be located at an elevation below the Regulatory Flood Protection Elevation.
	D. Structures with two or more rigid walls, must meet one of the following construction methods:
	(1) Wet Floodproofing. Structures may be floodproofed in a way to accommodate internal flooding. Such structures shall constitute a minimal investment not to exceed 576 square feet in size, one-story in height, and shall only be used for parking and s...
	(2) Elevation on Fill. Structures may be elevated on fill, meeting the standards in Section 6.21.A of this ordinance. Fill is not required to be extended 15 feet beyond the outside limits of the structure.
	(3) Alternative Elevation Methods. Structures may have their lowest floor elevated above the Regulatory Flood Protection Elevation (RFPE) through methods alternative to the fill standards in Section 6.23.D(2), and must meet the standards in Section 6....
	(4) Dry Floodproofing. Structures may be dry-floodproofed, or watertight, meeting the standards in Section 6.22.C of this ordinance.


	6.24 All new principal structures must provide vehicular access no lower than one foot below the Base Flood Elevation (BFE), unless a flood warning/emergency evacuation plan has been approved by the City of Clearwater.
	6.25 Any facilities used by employees or the general public must be designed with a flood warning system acceptable to the City of Clearwater that provides adequate time for evacuation, or be designed to ensure that within the area inundated during th...
	6.26 Manufactured homes and recreational vehicles must meet the standards of Section 10 of this ordinance.

	6.3 Conditional Uses in Flood Fringe.  The following uses and activities may be permitted as conditional uses, subject to the standards in Sections 6.4:
	6.31 Alternative Elevation Methods – Residential Structures. Residential structures with their lowest floor elevated above the Regulatory Flood Protection Elevation (RFPE) using methods alternative to the fill requirements in Section 6.21.

	6.4 Standards for Conditional Uses in Flood Fringe.  In addition to the applicable standards detailed in Sections 4.0, 6.2 and 11.2:
	6.41 All residential structures with lowest floors elevated through alternative elevation methods must meet the standards in Section 6.22.B of this ordinance.


	SECTION 7.0  RESERVED FOR GENERAL FLOODPLAIN DISTRICT
	SECTION 8.0  SUBDIVISION STANDARDS
	8.1 Subdivisions.  All subdivided land must meet the following requirements. Manufactured home parks and recreational vehicle parks or campgrounds are considered subdivisions under this ordinance.
	8.11 All lots within floodplain districts must be suitable for a building site outside of the Floodway District.
	8.12 Subdivision of lands within the floodplain districts may not be approved if the cost of providing governmental services would impose an unreasonable economic burden on the City of Clearwater.
	8.13 All subdivisions must have vehicular access both to the subdivision and to the individual building sites no lower than two feet below the Regulatory Flood Protection Elevation (RFPE), unless a flood warning/emergency evacuation plan has been appr...
	8.14 The Floodway and Flood Fringe District boundaries, the Regulatory Flood Protection Elevation (RFPE) and the required elevation of all access roads must be clearly identified on all required subdivision drawings and platting documents.


	SECTION 9.0  PUBLIC AND PRIVATE UTILITIES, SERVICE FACILITES, ROADS, BRIDGES, AND RAILROADS
	9.1 Public Transportation Facilities.  Railroad tracks, roads, and bridges must be elevated to the Regulatory Flood Protection Elevation (RFPE) where such facilities are essential to the orderly functioning of the area, or where failure or interruptio...
	9.2 Public Utilities.  All utilities such as gas, electrical, sewer, and water supply systems to be located in the floodplain must be elevated and/or floodproofed to the Regulatory Flood Protection Elevation (RFPE), be located and constructed to minim...
	9.3 Private On-Site Water Supply, Individual Sewage Treatment Systems, and other Service Facilities.  Private facilities shall be subject to applicable provisions detailed in Section 9.2. In addition, new or replacement on-site sewage treatment system...

	SECTION 10.0  MANUFACTURED HOMES AND RECREATIONAL VEHICLES
	10.1 Manufactured Homes.  Manufactured homes and manufactured home parks are subject to applicable standards for each floodplain district. In addition:
	10.11 New and replacement manufactured homes must be placed and elevated in compliance with Section 6.0 of this ordinance and must be securely anchored to a system that resists flotation, collapse and lateral movement. Methods of anchoring may include...
	10.12 New manufactured home parks and expansions to existing manufactured home parks must meet the appropriate standards for subdivisions in Section 8.0 of this ordinance.

	10.2 Recreational Vehicles.  New recreational vehicle parks or campgrounds and expansions to existing recreational vehicle parks or campgrounds are prohibited in any floodplain district. Recreational vehicles placed in existing recreational vehicle pa...
	10.21 Meet the requirements for manufactured homes in Section 10.1, or
	10.22 Be travel ready, meeting the following criteria:
	A. The vehicle must be fully licensed.
	B. The vehicle must be ready for highway use, meaning on wheels or the internal jacking system, attached to the site only by quick disconnect type utilities.
	C. No permanent structural type additions may be attached to the vehicle.
	D. Accessory structures may be permitted in the Flood Fringe District, provided they do not hinder the removal of the vehicle should flooding occur, and meet the standards outlined in Sections 4.0 and 6.23.



	SECTION 11.0  ADMINISTRATION
	11.1 Duties.  A Zoning Administrator or other official must administer and enforce this ordinance.
	11.11 Permit Application Requirements.  Permit applications must be submitted to the Zoning Administrator. The permit application must include the following, as applicable:
	A. A site plan showing all existing or proposed buildings, structures, service facilities, potential obstructions, and pertinent design features having an influence on the permit.
	B. Location and detail of grading, fill, or storage of materials.
	C. Copies of any required local, state or federal permits or approvals.
	D. Other relevant information requested by the Zoning Administrator as necessary to properly evaluate the permit application.

	11.12 Recordkeeping.  The Zoning Administrator must maintain applicable records in perpetuity documenting:
	A. All certifications for dry floodproofing and alternative elevation methods, where applicable.
	B. Analysis of no-rise in the Floodway District, as detailed in Section 5.21, and encroachment analysis ensuring no more than one-half foot of rise in the General Floodplain District, as detailed in Sections 7.22 and 7.31.
	C. Final elevations, as applicable, detailing the elevation to which structures and improvements to structures are constructed or floodproofed. Elevations shall be determined by an engineer, architect, surveyor or other qualified individual, as approv...
	D. Substantial damage and substantial improvement determinations, as detailed in Section 12.13, including the cost of improvements, repairs, and market value.
	E. All variance actions, including justification for their issuance, and must report such variances as requested by the Federal Emergency Management Agency.

	11.13 Certificate of Zoning Compliance for a New, Altered, or Nonconforming Use.  No building, land or structure may be occupied or used in any manner until a certificate of zoning compliance has been issued by the Zoning Administrator stating that th...
	11.14 Notifications for Watercourse Alterations.  Before authorizing any alteration or relocation of a river or stream, the Zoning Administrator must notify adjacent communities. If the applicant has applied for a permit to work in public waters in ac...
	11.15 Notification to FEMA When Physical Changes Increase or Decrease Base Flood Elevations.  Where physical changes affecting flooding conditions may increase or decrease the water surface elevation of the base flood, the City of Clearwater must noti...

	11.2 Conditional Uses and Variances
	11.21 Process.
	A. An application for a conditional use permit will be processed and reviewed in accordance with the provisions of this ordinance.
	B. An application for a variance to the provisions of this ordinance will be processed and reviewed in accordance with Minnesota Statutes, section 462.357, Subd. 6(2) and this ordinance.

	11.22 Additional Variance Criteria.  The following additional variance criteria must be satisfied:
	A. Variances must not be issued within any designated regulatory floodway if any increase in flood levels during the base flood discharge would result.
	B. Variances from the provisions of this ordinance may only be issued by a community upon:
	(1) A showing of good and sufficient cause;
	(2) A determination that failure to grant the variance would result in exceptional hardship to the applicant; and
	(3) A determination that the granting of a variance will not result in increased flood heights, additional threats to public safety, extraordinary public expense, create nuisances, cause fraud on or victimization of the public, or conflict with existi...

	C. Variances from the provisions in this ordinance may only be issued upon a determination that the variance is the minimum necessary, considering the flood hazard, to afford relief.
	D. Variances must be consistent with the general purpose of these standards and the intent of applicable provisions in state and federal law.
	E. Variances may be used to modify permissible methods of flood protection, but no variance shall permit a lesser degree of flood protection than the Regulatory Flood Protection Elevation (RFPE).
	F. The Zoning Administrator must notify the applicant for a variance in writing that:
	(1) The issuance of a variance to construct a structure below the base flood level will result in increased premium rates for flood insurance up to amounts as high as $25 for $100 of insurance coverage; and
	(2) Such construction below the base flood level increases risks to life and property. Notification must be maintained with a record of all variance actions.


	11.23 Considerations for Approval.  The City of Clearwater must consider all relevant factors specified in other sections of this ordinance in granting variances and conditional use permits, including the following:
	A. The potential danger to life and property due to increased flood heights or velocities caused by encroachments.
	B. The danger that materials may be swept onto other lands or downstream to the injury of others.
	C. The safety of access to the property in times of flood for ordinary and emergency vehicles.

	11.24 Conditions of Approval. The City of Clearwater may attach such conditions to the granting of variances and conditional use permits as it deems necessary to fulfill the purposes of this ordinance. Such conditions may include, but are not limited ...
	A. Limitations on period of use, occupancy, and operation.
	B. Imposition of operational controls, sureties, and deed restrictions.
	C. The prevention of soil erosion or other possible pollution of public waters, both during and after construction.
	D. Other conditions as deemed appropriate by the Zoning Administrator and City Council.


	11.3 Notifications to the Department of Natural Resources
	11.31 All notices of public hearings to consider variances or conditional uses under this ordinance must be sent via electronic mail to the Department of Natural Resources respective area hydrologist at least ten (10) days before the hearings. Notices...
	11.32 A copy of all decisions granting variances and conditional uses under this ordinance must be sent via electronic mail to the Department of Natural Resources respective area hydrologist within ten (10) days of final action.


	SECTION 12.0  NONCONFORMITIES
	12.1 Continuance of Nonconformities. A use, structure, or occupancy of land which was lawful before the passage or amendment of this ordinance, but which is not in conformity with the provisions of this ordinance, may be continued subject to the follo...
	12.11 Within the floodway and general floodplain districts (when a site has been determined to be located in the floodway following the procedures in Section 7.3, or when the floodway has not been delineated), any expansion or enlargement of uses or s...
	12.12 Within all districts, any addition, modification, rehabilitation, repair, or alteration shall be in conformance with the provisions of this ordinance, shall not increase the flood damage potential or increase the degree of obstruction to flood f...
	12.13 If any nonconforming structure is determined to be substantially damaged or substantially improved based on the procedures in Section 12.2, it may not be reconstructed except in conformity with the provisions of this ordinance.
	12.14 If any nonconforming use, or any use of a nonconforming structure, is discontinued for more than one year, any future use of the premises must conform to this ordinance.
	12.15 If any nonconforming structure has utilities, electrical, or mechanical equipment damaged due to flooding, it must be rebuilt in conformance with the elevation requirements in Section 4.31.D to the greatest extent practicable. This requirement s...

	12.2 Substantial Improvement and Substantial Damage Determinations. Prior to issuing any permits for additions, modifications, rehabilitations, repairs, alterations, or maintenance to nonconforming structures, the Zoning Administrator is required to d...
	12.21 Estimate the market value of the structure. In the case of repairs, the market value of the structure shall be the market value before the damage occurred and before any restoration or repairs are made.
	12.22 Estimate the cost of the project. The property owner shall accommodate for inspection, and furnish other documentation needed by the zoning administrator to evaluate costs.
	A. Improvement costs shall be comprised of the market rate of all materials and labor, as well as the costs of all ordinary maintenance and upkeep carried out over the past one year.
	B. Costs to repair damages shall be comprised of the market rate of all materials and labor required to restore a building to its pre-damaged condition regardless of the work proposed, as well as associated improvement costs if structure is being rest...

	12.23 Compare the cost of the improvement, repairs, or combination thereof to the estimated market value of the structure, and determine whether the proposed work constitutes substantial improvement or repair of a substantially damaged structure, as d...
	A. For the purposes of determining whether the proposed work would constitute substantial improvement, the evaluation shall also include all rehabilitations, additions, or other improvements completed since the community has adopted floodplain standar...
	B. If any nonconforming structure experiences a repetitive loss, as defined in Section 2.0 of this ordinance, it shall be considered substantially damaged and must not be reconstructed except in conformity with the provisions of this ordinance.

	12.24 Based on this determination, the zoning administrator shall prepare a determination letter and notify the property owner accordingly. Structures determined to be substantially damaged or substantially improved may not be reconstructed except in ...


	SECTION 13.0  VIOLATIONS AND PENALTIES
	13.1 Uses in Violation of the Ordinance.  Every structure, fill, deposit, or other use placed or maintained in the floodplain in violation of this ordinance shall be considered a public nuisance.
	13.2 Civil Remedies. The creation of a public nuisance may be enjoined and the maintenance of a public nuisance under this ordinance may be abated by an action brought by the City of Clearwater or the Department of Natural Resources.
	13.3 Enforcement.  Violations of the provisions of this ordinance constitutes a misdemeanor and is punishable as defined by law. The Zoning Administrator may utilize the full array of enforcement actions available to it including but not limited to pr...

	SECTION 14.0  AMENDMENTS
	14.1 Ordinance Amendments.  Any revisions to the floodplain maps by the Federal Emergency Management Agency or annexations of new map panels require an ordinance amendment to update the map references in Section 3.2 of this ordinance.
	14.2 Required Approval.  All amendments to this ordinance must be submitted to the Department of Natural Resources for review and approval prior to adoption, for compliance with state and federal rules and requirements. The floodplain ordinance shall ...





